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Tel: +36 1 235 3010, 235 3090 BDO Magyarorszag
Fax: +36 1 266 6438 Knyvvizsgald Kft.
e — www.bdo.hu 1103 Budapest, Kbér utcaZ/a.

Laurus Irodahdzak € épiilet
1476 Budapest, Pf.138.

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Shareholders of ENEFI Energiahatékonységi Nyrt.

Audit Report on consolidated annual financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated annual financial statements of ENEFI
Energiahatékonységl Nyrt. for the year 2014, which consolidated financial statements comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015 - which shows total assets of
33 913 361 EUR, and the related consolidated statement of comprehensive income - which shows a
loss for the year of (1 365 948) EUR -, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated
statemerit of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for maintaining internal controls which are considered necessary by the
management to prepare the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on the
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as the evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statemenis.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our adverse audit opinion,

A BDO Magyarorszig Kiinyvvizsgald Kit. egy magyar korldtott fetelSsségi tarsashg, oz egyestilt kiralysigbeli BDO fnternationat Limited garancia alapl tirsasig tagla s
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1. With regards to the Polish Entities of the Group (Elektrocieplownia Mielec Spétka z 0. 0., E-Star Polska)
the financial statements have been prepared not in accordance with IFRS and have not been audited.

2. Balance sheet items in the consolidated accounts of the Polish group entities were not supported
properly. Movements of retained earnings in E-Star Polska's balance sheet have not been justified; EUR
5,757,381 decrease in retained earnings remained unsupported with documentation. In the consolidated
statement of profit and loss of Elektrocizplownia Mielec Spotka z o. o. net profit relating to non
controlling interest has not been determined properly, therefore the parent company’s profit share could
not been substantiated as well, however the exact difference could not been addressed.

3. In case of one Polish group entity, a Premium Fund 5p. z.0.0. the information basis regarding the share in
the consolidation and judgment of control is not complete,

4. Regarding RFV Slovakia sro (Slovakian subsidiary) and Premium Fund Sp. z.0.0. {Polish subsidiary) audited
financial statements were not available, therefore the figures relating these components have not been
reviewed.

5. Due to the lack of EETEK Limited’s financial statements presentation of the financial and equity position
of the subsidiary (based on the IFRS consolidated figures) is incomplete and unclear.

6. In 2015 E-Star ESCO Kft {(with profitable projects) has been excluded from the Group due to company sale
transaction. From the sale transaction the Group will realize EUR 1,516,367 loss due to the fact that the
Group will not be entitled to the discounted cash-flows from the concession rights {with the application
of IFRIC 12 model), therefore the relating immaterial assets have been impaired. The consolidated
financiat statements do not include information about this issue.

7. The parent Company signed lease contract with E-Star ESCO Kft relating to the fixed assets utilized under
the terms of concession contracts (and hought back by the parent Company}. The rental fee from this
contract is significantly lower that the concession fees based on the earlier concession contracts. The
transaction has been properly qualified as financial lease according to IAS 17, however the compulsory
disclosures according to IFRS have not bee presented and the short-term part of the leasing receivables

has not been reclassified.

8. Due to the quality of the information support process and the differences of the source information for
the consolidation there are uncertainties regarding the judgment of the significant differences,

9. The consolidated equity movement schedule has been presented improperly and incomplete, the items
affecting directly the retained earnings have not been disclesed, the effects of these items have been
presented netted in one line. The amount of profit after taxation is different in the statement of
comprehensive income and in the equity movement schedule.

10. The disposal of the terminated shareholdings has been performed not in line with the regulations of IFRS
10 (Mures Energy SA ,under termination”, E-Star ESCO Kft., Veszprém Megyei Nonprofit Kft., Fejér
Megyei Nonprofit Kft., E-Star Management Polska), the proportional part of the net assets has not been
disposed, only the proportional part of current year's profit and loss has been accounted for against
retained earings. The disclosures regarding the disposed subsidiaries are not complete.

11.Due to the 2016 sale of E-Star Polska the income statement figures have been modified as of 31
December 2014, however the compulsory disclosures relating to the above modification according to IRFS

§ have not been presented.

12. Regarding the repurchased own shares’ value and quantity movements we could not obtain reasonable
supporting evidences, thus we are unable to express opinion on the balance sheet value of this item in

the consolidated balance sheet.

13. We have knowledge about the legal cases and litigation of the Company’s investment group, however we
could not obtain assurance about the relating financial-economical exposure and effects on the parent
company. Estimations even were not available relating to the completeness of the above information.
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In our opinion, due to the effects of the facts mentioned in ‘Basis for Adverse Opinion’ paragraph
the accompanying consolidated annual financial statements do not give a true and fair view of
the equity and financial position of ENEF! Energiahatékonysagl Nyrt. as at 31 December 2015 and
of the result of its operation for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurepean Union.

Emphasis of matter

1. Out of the subsidiaries of EETEK Limited subsidiary, ENEFI Polska Spétka Z o. 0. has been sold after the

balance sheet date and as an outcome of the transaction the Company’s residence in Poland is
terminated as it presented on the third page of the supplementary notes.
A part of the revenues generated by above sale transaction was utilized to finance the increase of the
repurchased own shares of the Company. With the increase of own shares the shareholders’ structure
significantly changed by the balance sheet preparation date, within the 100% share structure the share of
the own shares has increased from 17.92% to 68.73% (presented on first page of the supplementary
notes). Accarding to the Act on the Civil Code No. V/2013 the level of the repurchased own shares shall
hot exceed 25%.

2. The individual charged with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Company is
not a qualified IFRS accountant.

3. On 8 March 2016 the Hungarian National Bank initiated stock exchange oversight examination against the
Company, due to the fact that the suspicion of market influencing and prohibited jnsider trading has
emerged. We have not received information about the outcome of the examination until the date of the
audit report.

Other issues

The Company did not keep the disclosure deadline regulated by 54.5 (4) of the the Act on Equity
Market No. CXX./2001.

Other reporting requirements: Reporting on the consolidated business report

We have examined the accompanying consolidated business report of ENEF| Energiahatékonysagi Nyrt.
for the financial year of 2015.

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated business
report in accordance with the Hungarian Accounting Law, Our responsibility is to assess whether or
not the accounting information disclosed in the consolidated business report is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements. Our work in respect of the consolidated business report was
limited to assessing whether the consolidated business report is consistent with the consolidated
financial statements and does not include reviewing other information originated from non audited
financial records. In our opinion the 2015 consolidated business report of ENEFI Energiahatékonysagi
Nyrt. is consistent with the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December
2015 on which we issued adverse opinion.

Budapest, 1 June 2016
BDO Hungary Audit Ltd.
1103 Budapest, K&ér utca 2/A
Registration number: 002387
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Pétér Varga (& e Fereng Baumgartner
Director I3 e &1 Certified Auditor
g G23RT gl/’ Chamber registration No.:
Yo N, 002955
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This is the translation of the original Hungarian statut’di'; report. In case of any discrepancies, the original
Hungarian version prevails,
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B0 Hungary Audit Lid, a Hungarian limited Wability company, fs 3 member of 600 International Limited, a UK compaty limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDOnetwark of independent firms.
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ENEFI ENERGYEFFICIENCY PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015
Consolidatad statement of financial position

AT data In EUR unlass otharsiss indicated

20151231,

Countinued Cperalions

Revenue L] 3819 Bog 1798 423
Cost of sales -1 827 723 -1 870 527
Gross Profit 2192176 ;
Personne| cost 7 ~-772 007 -751 617
Searvice used 8 -788 539 -§43 588
Other revenue and expenditures, net 9 -6 222 056 523 456
Depraciation : 13,16 2784167  -BY5 857
Impalrment of property, plant and equipment 13, 18 0 57 237
Nst profitioss from financia! activities 10 6 656 007 301 061
Net profitfioss from assaciated companies 14 -233 198 0
Profit hefore tax [ -15931 784

Income tax expense 1 -1 448 203 13708
Profit from discontinuad operations 12 2012039 1 540 381

Profit for the yodr 505 251
Aliributable to:

Ownaers of the Company 37 -1 913 415 1768 540
Non-controlling Interests a7 547 466 277392
Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency transiation differences 217 833 ~742 546
Total other comprehensive Income 217833 ~742 546

Total comprehensive incomg

Attributable to: )
OCwners of the Company -1695582 1025994
Non-controlling interests 547 466 277 392

Basic eaming per share 30 -0,08 0,08
Diluted earnings per share 30 0,09 0.09
Countinued operatlons

Baslc earning per share 30 -0,08 0,07
Diluted earnings per share a0 -0,08 0,07

f ph <= _ 2

Rapresentative of ENEFI ENERG‘(EFFICI

June 1, 20186,
H\IEFI Energ*ahatékonységi Nyrt
1134 Budapest, Klapka u. 11, 2. em, ‘
Lddiazam: 137180689-4- 41
Gsoporiczonosiig: 17781846-5-41
Banksz.sz: 12001008-001 23720~ -00100000

5
The notes sef oul on pages 10 o 60 are an Inseparable pari of these consolidaled financls! siatements.




ENEFI ENERGYEFFICIENCY PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY Sis ENEFI
Censolidated financlal statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 S s

Consolidated statement of financial position Al date in EUR wnless ofharwise indisated

Consolidatod statemant of limancinl position - Assals

Property, ptant and equipment 15 628 584 16 887 601
Intangible asseis 13 2528106 6961217
Investments In affiliated companies 14 0 858 945
Investments In other companles 36 0 35044
Financial Asset ) 16 2621913 5728710
Finance lease recaivables 17 1714 495 16504

Deferred fax assels 11 418 937 1257 568

Total non-current assets ] 7 5 3JIBME 9'
Assots held for sale 19 23 564 741 o
inventories 20 18621 2 254 387
Trade recelvables 21,22 894 269 3 841 839
Other recalvables due within a ysar 22 500 647 1162 987
Accruals and prepald expensas 23 a77 840 596 868
Securitles - 0 685

530 976

Cash and cash eguivelants 24 645 208

Total current assets 26 001 326

33,813 361

Total assets

Consolidatad statamant ol financial positicn - Equity-and fabllities 0151230 20141383

Share capltal 25 969 068 969 968
Reserves 26 40573987 53172204
Treasury shares 27 -6 167 808 -17 478 556
Reltained sarn -22 898 668 D0 870 884
12777 483 15704 762
2 (46 274

14823757 17479231

Loans and other long term financlal labillies 31 0 6 822 750
Provisions 29 858378 1567670
Deferred tax liabilitios 11 222 547 115 335
Deferred income 0 3183 956
Qiher long-term llablliles 7 708 873 B30

| Total ndhsBurrent fiabilitied 1088630 12 353 541

Liabiiities held for sale 16 15 354 466 0
Trade payables 36 861 125 3897175
Loans and other short term financlal liabilities 31 o 1 683 806
Provisionts (current) 29 o 1402 943
Accruals and deferred income 35 B53 890 1 059 693
Other I'blﬂes 36 1131 493 2 341 642

18000 874 10 385 559

Totat Jiabiitich 19089 604 22749 100

38914 361

40 228 131

Total egquity and 1r'fb11rt1qn—'

Status: June 1, 2o$dnsram 13719%9 4= 4;
Csopartaznnesik: 17781846-5-41

Banksz 52 12001008-00123720-00100000 6

The noles set ouf on pages 10 to 60 are an inseparable part of these consolidated financial stalements.
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ENEFI ENERGYEFFICIENCY PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY P
Consolidated financlal statements for the year ended December 31, 2015
Consolidated statement of cash flows Al datz in EUR unless otherwise Indicated.
[ S o e == R 2015 _ LT
Gash fiow from
operations
Profit Aoas for the perlod from continuing operations -1365049 2045036
Incoma tax expense recognised in profit and loss 1 520 338 483 437
Ingome tax pald -1 170 365 =439 649
Depreciation and amortization 2664603 1980187
Impairment of asset 6 647 722 486 207
Reversed impalment -259 251 449 8561
Caln on sale of fixed asset 432 252 8 054
Exchange diffsrence -35 613 171 413
Changes of falr value of financlal assets 768604  -138817
Changes of provisions ) 431 560 615 186
Change in other iong term liabllities -365 060 -121 598
Result from the sale of a subsidiary -1 489 679 0
Change in deferred Income -249 248 -8B 481

Change In deferred taxes, assets and liabilifes 1289 135
Adjusted profitfioss inthe year concernad: L . 8832139

3 762 397

Change In operating capital

Changes of financlal asaefs 0 -1009 587
Changes of receivables and other current assets -5 510 231 22 414
Changes of accruals 72672 195 640
Changes of inventories 708 080 274 451
Changes of Trade payables and ofher liabllities -2 136 820 -1 822 280

Net cash-flow from operating activity | 156 875 469 -1 430 362

Cash flows from investing activitles

ines a i
Payments related to purchasing property, machines and equipment 829646 -1544 493

Revenue from the sale of property, machines, equipment and financial

instrument 564 847 33604
Net cash inflow related to the sate of subsidiaries 0 0

Net cash out for new financlal assets (new oontracls) _ ¢ -933571
Net cash fow from investing. ax.t_lwty A LE : I .2 444 460

Cash flows from financing activities

Change In loans (iake out-repayment) -1 b96 708 -232 356
Divident pald to non centrolling interest -185 210 -169 122
Sala - purchase of securitios 0 -£85

=17 722 -111 971
-1 798 640 -514 434 |

Sale - purchase of troasury shares
Nat cash flow from financial activities

+

Change of Cash and cash equivalents 105 232 -628 559
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 630076 1168535
Gash antl cash equivalents at the end of the year | 6457208 539 916

8
The nofas saf oul on pages 10 {o 60 are an Insaparable pari of these consolidaled finencial statsments.
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ENEFI ENERGYEFFICIENCY PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY Rt
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015
Notes to the consclidated financial statemenis All datta in EUR unless otherwisa Indlcated.

1.  General Backgrouns

1.1. Introduction of the Group

ENEFI Energy Efficiency Ple. {formerly named: E-Star Akemative Ple., RFV Pic.) {called [ENEFI® or ,Company®), which is the parent
company of the group ("Group”), I= regisiered In Hurgary. Its registered head office is at 1134 Budepesl, Klapka str. 11. The
Company's legal predecessor was established on 29 June 2000 with the aim of implementing for its clients — primarily energy-related
— Investments, the cost of which are recouped from the savings they generats, and by operating these projects In the long term,
efficlantly sunnlying anerpy to fia ciienis, As of the helance shest date. the Company’s cwnars wers as follows:

Chwnar Al 1 Duocember 2014

Porcemiago of ownership {3
Treasury Shares 17,92 20,39
OFP Alapkezel Zrt. 14,67 14,67
Csaba Sofs 1147 11,47
CRH INVEST Kft. 11,27 11,27
Alllanz AlapkezelB Zri. 8,75 8,75
Free Float (owned by subsidiaries) 34,92 (4,00) 32,45

Total 100% 100%

The company's ownaship structure an the balanos sheot dals

Fercentage of oswnership (7]
Treasury Shares 64,35
PLOTINUS HOLDING Nyrt. 6,87
OTP Alapkezels Zit. 0
Csaba Sods 0
CRH INVEST KR, 0
Allianz Alapkezel Zit. 0
Fres Float {owned by subsidiarles) 29,78 (4,38)

, Total 1003

Initially, the Company Implemented heat supply, public iighting and kilchen technology investments In Hungary, mostly In the
munijcipal sphere. Owing to the changing economic and soclal expectations In our region, the demand for the solutions offered by our
Company kept increasing, which permitted the Company, which was gaining strength and acquiring references in Hungary, to expand
reglonally as wall, :

Because municipalities In our reglon are underfinenced and the heating technclogy of public institutions Is outmoded, slgnificant
savings can be reallsed, and therefore, stariing from the 2010 business year, the Companyfcompany group began fo focus
increasingly on the nsighbouring countries, primarily Romania and Poland.

In the period since then, the Company has grown into an enterprise and a corporate group that plays an increasingly important role in
Implementing energy-gaving projects in the Central-Eastern Europsan region = based on the use of renewable energy, but at the
same time [ started fo encounter increasing liquidity problems.

At present the Company Is an aotual stock exchangelisted ESCO (an Energy Service Company that implemenia energy savings}) In
Hungary. The Company developed Individual solutions for each of its projects, independent of any technalogy or service provider. It
implemented projects as & maln contractor while securing the appropriate financing.

Whan preparing projects, ENEF| Energysfficiency Ple. first examinedfexemines the possibliities of streamlining Hs customers’ energy
consumption points, then realises Investmsnts that help achleve considerable savings. An added business value of tha projects is
that, after the Investments are complated, ENEFI Energyafficiency Plc. provides Innovative energy services, as well as operates and
malntains the energy systems of its partners ovar the iong run.
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ENEFI ENERGYEFFICIENCY PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY IV
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended Decembar 31, 2015
Notes to the consolidated financial statements All data in EUR unless otherwlse indicated.

2. The Basis for Preparing the Censolidated Financial Statements

The consolidatad annual finandial statements have been prepared in acoordance with the Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards
({FRS", also adopted by the EU. The International Finandlel Reporting Standards (,JFRS"™ contain the standaris approved by the
Commission of the European Communities and Issued by the Intarational Accounting Standards Board (JASE’) as well as the
International Actounting Standards (,IAS™) Issued by the Infemational Accounting Standards Commitiee {JASC"). They include further
the interpretations of the Intemational Financial Reporiing Standards Interpretation Committee (JFRS 1C7) and the Standing

Interpretations Commitiee (,S1C7) approved by the European Commission.

The basls of on

The consolidated financial statements Include the financlal statements of the Gompany and of business entilles controlied by the
Company, Induding special-purpose entillss (the Cempany's subsidiaries). Control means that the Company has enough power io
control the financial and operating regulations of the entity in arder to take benefit from its business operation,

The income and expense of subsidiares acqulred or disposed of during the ysar are presentsd in the consclldated comprehensive
profit and loss statement starting from the actusl date of acquisition till the actual date of disposal. The total Income of the subsidiarles
is duse o the ownere of the Company and of the non-controfling shares even if this would render the balance of the non-controlling

shares to become negative.

If necessary, the finandial statements of subsidiarles are modified In order fo harmonize their financial poiicies with the financial
policies applied by the other members of the Group.

Inra-group transacticns, balences, revenuss and expenses will be fully excluded at the date of consolidation.

Consolidated companies:
2015 20id
Moo Coumtry of Sharo Vating Share Vating
mcorporation  owneorship  power ownprsbip  powar
EETEK Limited Cyprus 100%  100% 100% TH%
E-Star ESCO Kit. (formerly RFV Esco KR.Y* Hungary - - 100%  100%
RFV Jézsefvéros Kfi. Hungary 49% 70% 49% 70%
Veszprém Megyei Non-profit Kit-* Hungary - - 100% 50%
Fejér Megyel Energla Nonprofit Kit.* Hungary - - 100% 51%
E-Star Management Zrt. (formerly RFV Managemaent Kft.)* Hungary 100%  100% 100%  100%
ENEF] Projekiiarsassg KR, Hungary 100%  100% -
Elektreclaplownia Mielec Spétka z 0. 0. Poland 8537% 8537% 85,37% B5,37%
EC-Energetyka Spélka Z 0. 0. ** Poland 51,66% 51,66% 51,66% 861,66%
E-STAR Polske™ Poland 100%  100% 100%  100%
Premium Fund Sp zoo** Foland 99,9% 99.9% - -
Energla Euro Park Sp. z 0.0.** Poland  21,65% 21,65%  21,65% 21.65%
E-Star Centrul de Dezvoltare Regionala SRL Romania 100% 100% 100%  100%
Termosnergy stl Romania 09,50% 99,50% 90,50% 99.50%
SC Faaprilek SA Romanla 90.99% 99.00% 99.08% 09.98%
E-STAR 2A Distriterm SRL felszémolds alatt” Romania 51% 51% 00.99% 00.99%
E-Star Mures Energy SA "falszdmolis akatt”™ Romania 99.90% 99.99% £9.00% 09.90%
E-Star Altemative Enargy SA Romania 09.00% 99.99% £0.09% 09.90%
E-Star Energy Generafion SA Romanilza 99.00% 09.99% 99.99% 99.29%
E-STAR Investment Management SRL jelszdmolds alatt® Romania 69,03% 98.93% 09,93% 99,93%
RFYV Slovekia sro™ Slovakla _100%  100% 100%  100%
* Subeldlary sold durng the year.

** Subsidiary sold after the balance sheat's date.
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2.1. Changes in the accounting policy, expected impact of IFRSs and IFRICs not yet effective on
the day of the financial statements, former applications

The Group voluntarily did not change its accounting policies applied In 2014 for 2015.
Balow we cover the impacl on the Group's financial stalements by the changes In the IFRSs and IFRICs entaring info effect after the
balance sheet date. We do nol analyse in delalls the expacted impact of the changes In IFRSs and IFRICs that are in progress and
krown at the balance shes! date because they do not influence the financlal statements significantly, and disregarding them doss not
affect the decislons o’f thnse uslng the raport

wing ] ] 5 s (also

New and modified standards and interpretations entering info effect from this reporfing perled, published by the IASB and adoped by
the EU:

The modification of various standards “IFRS Jmprovements (in 2011-2013)" — adopted by the EU on 18 December, 2014, Madtfication
conceming the following standards (JFRS 2, IFRS 13 and IAS 40} as a result of the IFRS Development Project, primarily In order to
terminate inconsistencies and to clarify explanations (the medifications must be applied from 1 January 2015 and in the reporiing
perlods starting afterwards),

IFRIC 21 “Levies" — adopted by the EU on 13 Juns, 2014 {will enter into force on 17 June, 2014 and In the reporting parlods starting
afier the above date), The above modifications to the existing standarda did not result in the modification of the Group's accounting
policles, and do not impact the Group significantly.

The following setanctards Issued by the IASE and adopted by the EU as well as the folfowing modifications of existing standards and
interpretations were published without entry into effect at the date of approving these finandlal statements:

IFRS 1 1{Modification) “Joint Arrangements” — accounting for acquisiion of interests In jolnt aclivities — adopted by the EU on 24
November 2015 (will enter into force on 1 January 2016 and in the reporting periods starting after the above date),

|1AS 1 (Modification) “Presentation of financial statements — Initiation of publication — acopted by the EU on 18 Dacamber 2015 (will
enter inlo force on 1 January 2016 and in the reporfing periods starting after the above date),

IAS 16 (Modification) "Property, plant and equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible assets” ~ Clarification of methads adopted for
depreciation and amortisation — adopled by the EU on 2 December 2015 {wil! enter Into force on 1 January 2016 and in the reporting
periods starting after the above date),

IAS 16 (Modification) “Property, plant and equipment” and IAS 41 "Agriculture” — Agriculture: Plants for growing — adopted by the EU
on 23 Navember 2015 (will enter Info force on 1 January 2016 and In the reporting periods stariing after the above date),

1AS 19 (Modification) “Employes benefits” — Specific benefit programmes, contributions paid by employess — adopted by the EU on 17
Decamber 2014 (will enter into force on 1 February 2016 and In the reporiing periods starfing after the above date),

IAS 27 {Modlfication) “Separate financlal statements” standard - Capital method in Individual financial statements ~ adopted by the
EU on 18 December 2015 (will enter Into force on 1 January 2018 and in the reporiing periods starting after the above date),

The modification of various standards “IFRS improvements {In 2010-2012)” — adopled by the EU on 17 December 2014. Modification
concerning the following standards (IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 186, IAS 24 and IAS 38) as a result of the IFRS .
Development Praject, primarly In order fo terminate Inconsistencies and fo clarify explanations (the modifications must be appiied
from 1 February 2015 and in the reporting periods starling afterwards},

The modification of various standards *IFRS improvements (in 2012-2014 )* — adopted by the EU on 15 December 2016. Modification
concerning the following atandards (IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19 and IAS 34) as a result of the IFRS Development Project, primarily in
order to terminate Inconsistencles and to clarify explanations (the modtfications must be applied fror 1 January 2018 end in the
reporting periods starfing afterwards).

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments” (will enter Into force on 1 January 2018 and In the reporting periods starting after the above date).

The IFRS 9 Financlal Instruments standard will replace the current IAS 39 standard. According to the modifications mada in 2014, this
standard must be first used from 1 January 2018, No major tasks or assential impacis can be expected on the financlal statements
with regard to classlfication and evaluation since ~ according to the current reviews - the Group has no financlal Instruments whose
classification or evaluation will change.

The IFRS 9 a'so redsfined the impaltment of financial Instruments, introducing the expected impalment model. The basis of the
definliion will be expacted impalment against (already) Incurred impairment placed on objective bases. The expected Impairment
maodel brings the time (incurrence) of knpaiment accounting closer in time. The adopted model includes the simplifiod mathod that
permits the business entily to use rules ofher than the complex ones with regard to various financlal assets (e.g. receivables and
similar instruments). This solution will probably be very close to the method that the business entity [s already using in connection with
these Instruments. The switch-over is not expected 1o have a significant arithmetic impact as these insfrumenis canry the biggest
welght among the business entity’s financial instruments, howaver, s calculation s still in progress.
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The IFRS 0 also re-regulated hedge accounting, which means that much more connections {economio phenomena) will mest the
conditions on applying hedge accounting and the earlier conformity conditions will be eased (rate of effectiveness, proving the
existence of effectivenass). The Group does not apply the-hedge accounting rules, therefore this change cannot affect the financial
statements. The IFRS 9 standard has not been adopted by the EU, either, and the Group Is net planning to bring the dafe of
application closer after the adoption.

IERS 14 "Regulatory Daforral Accounts” (will enter into force on 1 January 2016 and In the reporting perlods starting after the above
date) — the European Commission decided not to apply the approval process for the ourrent, Interim etandard and to walf for the final
standard.

IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with custemers® (will enter into force on 1 January 2018 and In the reporting perieds starting after

the abova date).
The slandard defines conceptual changses an the methedology of revenue accounting. The standard must be used from 1 January

2018. Some standards and Interpratations will be repealsd due to the modification:
{AS 18 Revenue

IAS 11 Construction contracts

IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes

IFRIC 15 Agreemanis for the construction of real esiate

IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers

SIC 31 Barter transactions Involving advertising services.

a & & ¢ @ 2

IFRS 15 created a unified model for revenuss deriving from contracts. The standard uses a unified, B-step model to specify when, and
In what amount revenues must be presented. This standard defines explicit expectations for the situation where several elements ang
simultanacusly transferred to the buyer. IFRS 15 recognises two meéthods for timing revenue accounting: revenues accounted at the
given date and during the given period. The IFRS 15 standard also offers theorefical rules on how to handle costs related {o contract
acquisttion and its fulfilment not shown elsewhere.

According to the Group’s preliminary calculations, the modifications prescribed by IFRS 15 will not affect the Group's financlal
slatements significantly because the revenues of current praducts and sefvices have also been presented so far under the principles
jald down in the standard. The Group will make the final calculations for the business year of 2016 to be able to smoothly Implement

the eventual introduction In 2017.

application.

IFRS 16 “Leases” (will anter Into force on 1 January 2019 and in the reporting periods starting after the above date).

The Leases standard basically modifies lease accounting, @ a main rule, each lsased element appears as an asset In the lesseo's
balanca shest, together with the related leasing fee payment obligation. The operalive leasing fee category baslcally disappears. The
content of the lessee's accounts do nol change, but the leasing classification Is modified. In addition to the basie change, the new
standard also modifies the evaluation rules and permiis the inclusion of changing elements into the leasing fees in a wider circle, The
dafinition of Isaaing is alse medifled and some earller contracts on capacity employment will not qualify as leasing. The stand must be
applied from 2019. Currentiy the Group is checking what changes the standard may causa in Its finandlal statements. The EU has not
adopted the etandard yet.

IFRS 10 (Modlfication) “Consolidated financial statements”, IFRS 12 (Modification) “Disclosura of interests In other entities” and IAS
28 "Invesiments in aseociates and joint venturas™ - Investment units: application of the consolidation excepiion (Wil enter into force on
1 January 2016 and In the reporiing periods starting after the above date}. _

{FRS 10 (Modification) “Consclidated financlal statements” and IAS 28 (Modification) *Investments in assoclates and joint ventures” —
Sale and transfer of assels between the Investor and its assoclated or joinfly managed company (its eniry info force s not known untl
closing the project aimed at the capital method).

IAS 12 {Modification) “Income taxes® - accounting deferred texes related to not realised losses {will enter into force on 1 January 2017
and in the reporting perlods stariing after the above dats).

The hedge accounting regarding the portfolic of financlal assets and finandial liablltiea has not been regulated yst as the decree has
not yet been adopted by the EL).

The implementation of the modifications, new standards and interpretetions would not influsnce signiflcantly the Group’s individual
financial Instruments. An exceplion Is the application of IFRS @ and IFRS 18, which may significantly influence the Group’s individusl
financial statements, and which will be analysed by the Group In 2016.

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1, Statement of compliance

The consdlidated financial statements have basn preparad In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopled
by the Europsan Union ("EL").
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3.2. Basls of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have besn prepared on the histordcsl cost basis except for certain propertles and financial
Instruments that are measured at revalued amounls or falr values, as explalned In the accounting pollcies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the falr value of the conglderation given In exchange for assats,

Changes in the Group's cwnership intarests in subsidiaries that do nof result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as aquity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's Interests and the non-confrolling interesis are adjusted to
reflect the changes In thelr relafive Interests In the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-conirolling
Interests ara adjusted and the falr value of the conslderation paid or recelved Is recognlsed direcily in equity and atiributed o owners
of the Campany.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a galn or loss is recognised In profit or Joss and is cslculated as the difference beiwesan
the aggregate of the falr value of the conslderation recelved and the fair value of any retained interest and the pravicus camylng
amount of the assets (including goodwill}, and liabiliies of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interasts. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative galn or loss has bean recognised in other
comprahensive Income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recagnised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for ae If the Group had directly disposed of the relevant assats {.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transforred directly to refained eamings as specified by applicable IFRSs). The falr value of any investment relained In the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the falr value on Iniflal recognition for subsequent acoounting under IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment In an

assodiale or a jointly controlled enfity.

3,4. Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquislilon method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date falr values of the assets iransferred by the Group,
llabillties incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity Interests Issuad by the Group In exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisilicn-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as Incurred.

At the acquisition date, the Ideniifiable asssls acquirad and the llabliifies assumed are recognised at their falr value,

Goodwill Is measured as the excess of the sum of the conslderation fransferred, the amount of any non-controliing interests in the
acguires, and the falr value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any} over the net of the acquisiion-date
amounts of the Identifiable asssts acqulred and the liabllifies assumed. if, after reassessment, the net of the ecquisition-date amounts
of the Identifiablie assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the conslderation transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests In the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest In the acquirea {if any), the excess Is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchese gain.

When the consideration transferred by ihe Graup in a business combinatlon includes asssis or lighilities resulting from a contingent
conslderalien arangement, the contingent consideration l= measured at s acguisition-date falr value and included as part of the
consideration trensfarred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideraflon that qualify as
measurement petiod adjustments are adjusted retrospeciively, with corresponding adjusiments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtalned during the ‘measurement period’ {(which cannof exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and clrcumstances that existed at the acquilsition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes In the fair valus of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement perfod
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration Is clagsified. Contingent consideration that Is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent setfement is accounted for within equity. Confingent conslderation that
is classified as an asset or a liabillly is remeasured at subsequent reporiing dates in accordance with 1AS 38, or IAS 37 Provisians,
Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets, as approprlata, with the corrasponding gain or loss being recognised In profit or loss.

Whan a business comblnafion is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest In the acquiree is remeasured o fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obialns control) and the resuiting gain or foss, if any, Is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior fo the acquisiilon date that have previously been recognised In other
comprehensive Income are reclasalfied to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate If that interest were disposed of.

If the inltial accounting for a business combination Is incomplete by the end of the raportihg period in which the combination cecurs,

the Group reports provisional amounts for the tems for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provislonal amounts are adjusted
during the measurement perlod (see above), or additional assets or liabilitles are recognisad, to reflect new information obtalned
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about facts and ciroumstances that existed at the acqulsition date that, If known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

3.5. Goodwill

Goodwlll arsing on an acquisiion of a business Is carrled at cost as established af the date of acguisition of the business less
accumulated impaiment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impaiment testing, goodwill Is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units {or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the comblnation,

A cash-generating unlt to which goodwill has bean allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequertly when there s
indication that the unit may ba Impalired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-gensrating unit Is less than lis carrying amount, the
impalment loss Is alfocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other asssts of the
unit pro rata based on the camying amount of each asset in the unit. Any Impalrment loss for goodwill is recogniged directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income. An impalment loss racognised for goodwill Is not reversed in

subsequent perfods.

On disposal of thé relevant cash-generating unit, the atiributable amount of goodwill is Included In the determination of the profit ar
losg on disposal.

For {he Group accourting policy regarding the goodwill on aqulslion of Investmant in affiliate see notes 3,6 below.

3.6. Invesfments in associates

An assoolate Is an enlity over which the Group has sigrificant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest In a joint
venture. Significant influsnce Is the power io participate In the financial and.operating poltcy dacislons of the Investes but Is not control
or joint control over those policles. :

The results and assets and liabillies of assoclates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statemenis using the equity
method of accounting, excapt when the investment Is classtiied as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordancs with
IFRS 5 Nen-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the equily method, an invesiment in an assoclate s
Inltially recognised in the consolidated statemant of financial postiion at cost and adjusted thereafter fo recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the assoclate. When the Group's share of losses of an asacciate excesds the
Group's interest in that associate (which Includes any long-term interests that, in substanca, form part of the Group's net Investment in
the assaciate), tha Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extant that
the Group has incurred legal or construclive obligations or made paymants on behalf of the assoclate.

Any excess of the cosl of acquisition over the Group's share of the nst falr value of the Identifiable esssts, liabiities and contingent
llablliies of an assodate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the Investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net falt value of the identifiable assets, liablliles and contingent liabilitias
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, Is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whather It is necessary to recognise any impaiment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. Whan necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goadwill) is fested for
impaiment In accordance with IAS 36 Impalment of Assels as a single asset by comparing Its recoverable amount (higher of value In
use and Fair value less costs to sall) with Its camying amount, Any impairment lose recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impaiment loss Is recognised In accordance with JAS 38 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
Upen disposal of an assodiate that resulis in the Group losing significant influence over that associste, any retained Investment Is
measured at falr value at that date and the fair value Is ragarded as Its falr value on inlfial recognition as a finandal asset in
accordance with IAS 38, The difference between the previous carrying amount of the assoclate stiributable o the retained Interest
and ks fair value is included In the determination of the galn or toss on dispesal of the assodiate, In addifion, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that assolate on the same basis as would be required if
that assodiate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabllities. Therefore, if @ gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would ba reclassified 1o profit or loss an the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjuaiment) when it loses significant influsnce over

fhat assoclate.

When a group enfity ransacts with lts assoclate, profits and logses resulting from the transactions with the assoclate are recognised In
the Group® consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests In the assaciate that are not relatsd to the Group.

3.7. Leases
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Whether a fransaciion Is a leasing transaclion or If it contalns such component depends on Hs content at the ime of its conclusion. If
the performance of the agreement depends on the use of a specific asset or If It essigns the right to use the assel, it must be
coneldered fo contain a leasing component and is therefore accounted for accordingly.

Financlel leasing In the context of which the malority of the risk and rewards related to the ownership right to the leased asset Is
transferred to the Company is capitalised at the start of the lease at the fale value of the leased asset or at the present value of the
minimum lease payments If it Is lower. Lease payments are apporifoned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease
abligetion so as to achieve a constanl rate of interest on the remaining balance of the flabllitly. Financlal cosls are dirsclly accounted
for through profitloss. The capitalised leased assel Is amorilsed during the estimated usefid iife or the lease perlod, whichever Is
shorter. The Inftlal costs Incurred at ths time when the financial lease contract is concluded increase the acquisition value of the
leased asset and are accounted for under the term of the lease similarly to leasa revenues. A lease in the context of which the lessor
retains the majority of the risks and benefiis related to the ownership right of the leased asset is aceounted for an operative lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a siraight-ine basis over the lease form.

Prepald rent represents fitle to perpetual usefruct of land acquired by or granted fo a groub entity by the Polish State which is
accounted for as an aparating lease. The amount pald to acquire a file to perpetual usefruct of land is recognized as operating lease
axpense In profit or loss over the period of entitiement to use of the land. There is no contract or agreement in the Group designated

as financial leass,

3.8. Revenue recoanition

Revenue fs measuwed at the fakr value of the consideration recelved or recelvable. Revenue s reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances. The revenue from sales frensactions Is recorded on the date of performance in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant supply contracts. The sales revenue does nat Include value added tax. All
Income and expensa Is recognized in accordance with the comparability principle in the appropriate period.

3.9, Rendering of services

Revenue from a confract to provide services Is recognised by reference 1o the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of
completion of the contract Is determined as follows:

+ Installation fees are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the Installation, determined as the praportion of the total

time expacted to install that has elapsed at the end of the reporting pericd;
» gepvicing fees included In the price of products sold are recognisad by reference to the preportion of the total cost of providing the

senvicing for the product sold; and
» revenue from fime and material contracts is recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours and direct expenses are incurred.

3.10. Divid nd tn e

Dividend Income from investments ks recognised when the shareholder's right to recelve payment has been astablished {provided that
it is probable that the economic benefils wiil flow to the Group and the emounl of income can be measured reliably).

Interest ihcome from a financlal asset Is recognised when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow fo the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basls, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effeclive interest rate applicable, which Is the rate ihat exactly discounts estimated futurs cash recalpts through the expected Iife
of the financlal asset to that assel's net camying amount on inltial recognition.

3.11. Fi I on

In preparing the financial statements of each Individual group entity, transactions In currencies other than the entify's functional
cumency (foreign cumencies) are recognleed at the rates of exchange prevaliing at tha dates of tha transactions. At the end of each
reporting peried, monetary items denominated In foreign currencles are retranslated at the raies prevalling at that date. Non-manstary
ltems cared ot falr value that are denominated i forelgn currencles are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the falr
value was determined. Non-moneary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a foreign cumency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences on monatary ifems are recognised in profit of loss in the parfod in which they arlse except for.
* a exchange differences on foreign curmency borrowings relating to aseels under construciion for future productive uss,

which are inclitded In the cost of those assats when they are regarded as an adjustment to inferest costs on those foreign
currency borowings; '
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®  axchange differsnces on fransactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

e exchange differences cn monetary items racelvable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is nelther
planned nor Ifkely to accur (therefore forming part of the net Investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initiafly In other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary ltems.

For the purposes of presenting consolldated financlal statements, the assels and llabillties of the Group's forelgn operations are
translated intc Currancy Units using exchange rates prevalling at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense ltems are
transiated at the average exchange rales for the period, unless exchange sates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which cage
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, If any, ars recognised In other
comprehenslve Income and accumulated in equity {atiributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a forelgn operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest In a foralgn operafion, or a dispogal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary thiat includes a foreign opsration, a disposal Involving loss of jeint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a forelgn operation, or a dsposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation}, all of the exchange differences accumulated In equity in respect of that operation atfributable to the owners, of the
Compaeny are reclassHied 1o profi or loss, :

In addition, in relation lo a partial disposal of  subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing conirol over the subsidlary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognisad in profit
or loss. For alf other partial disposals, the proporiionate share of the accumulated exchange differences Is reciasstled to profit or loss.

Goodwill and falr value adjusiments on ideniifiable assets and llabEiies acquired arlsing on the aoquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as essets and Jlablitiss of the forelgn operation and transfated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the end of each reporting

period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity.

The financlal statements were prepared in “EUR", and the functional currency of Individual subsidlaries s the same as that of
Individual countriss. The Group chose EUR as the currency of presentation to make it easler for investors to Interpret the financial

statements.

3142, Borrowing cosis

Bomowing costs directly atirbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are asssts that
necessarlly take a substantial period of time fo get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, uritil

auch time as the assets are substantlally ready for thelr Intended use or sale.

Investment income eamed on the temporary Investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs &ligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the perlod in which they are incurred.

313, _Goverment grants

Govemment grants ara not recognised untll there Is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Govemment grants ara recognised in profit or loss oh a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants ara Intended to compensaie. Specifically, govarnment granis whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as defarrad ravenue in fhe consolidated
statement of financial posilion and fransfarred ta profit or foss on & systematic and rational basls over the usefid lives of the related

assets.

Govemmenl grants that are recelvable as compansation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no fulure related costs are recognised In profit or loss In the period in which they
become recalvable.

The beneflt of a government loan at a below-market rate of inferest Is treated as & government grant, measured es the difforence
between procaeds received and the falr value of the loan based on prevafling market Interest rates.

314, Reli b

Dafined contribution plan

One subsidiary of the Company operates a defined contribution penslon plan for employees. Pension costs are charged against profit
or loss as the related service is provided.
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3.18. Share-based payment agreements

Equity-settiad share-based payments to employess and others providing similar services are measured at the fair valua of the equity
instrumanis at the grant date. .

The falr value delermined st the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments Is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting perlod, based on the Group's estimate of equity Instrumenta that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase In equiy.
At the end of sach reporling pariod, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected lo vest. The impact of
the ravision of the original estimates, If any, Is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a comesponding adjustment to the equity-setfed employea benefits reserve.

The policy described above is applied o all equity-setiled share-based payment transactions that were granted after 1 February 2010
and is effective untl December 31, 2014, No amounts have been recognised In the consolidated financlal statements in respect of

other equity-seitlad shared-based paymants.

Equity-ssttiad share-based payment transaclions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or
sorvioes recelved, except where that falr value cannot be estimated rellably, in which case they are measured at the falr value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the eniity cbtaine the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

No amounis have been recognized in the consolidated financial staternenis as cash-gettied share-basad payments.

3.16. Texation,
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Gurrent lax

The tax curvently payable Is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported In the consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income because of tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and ltems
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liabilify for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacled by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred fax Is recognised on temporary differances between the camying amounts of assels and liabilities In the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liablliies are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Defarred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
fo the extend that it is prabable that taxable profils will be avallable against which those deduclible temporary differences can be
utiilsed. Such deferred tax assels and liabllities are not recognised If the Emporary differenca arises from goodwill or from the Inilial
recognition (other than In a business combination) of other assets and liabiliies in a transaction that aflecis neither the texable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilfies are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with Investments In subsidiaries and associates,
ard Interests In joint ventures, except where the Group Is able o conirol the reversal of the temporary difference and It Is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arsing from deductible temporary
diferances assodiated with such investments and Interests are only recognised to the extent that it s probable that there will be
sufficiant texable profits agalnst which fo utlise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expecled lo reverse In the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of daferred tax assets ie reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
Ionger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Defesred tax liabillties and assets are maasured at fhe tax rates that are expected to apply In the period in which the labliity Is setfled
or the assat reallsed, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or subatanfively enacted by the end of the raporting
pariod. The measurement of deferred tax llabliiles and assels reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expscts, at the end of the reporling perlod, o recover or setile the carrying amount of its assets and Habilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and defarred tax are recognized in profit or loss, axcapt when thay relete to ltems that are recognised In other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, In which case, the current and defarred tax are also recognised in other comprshensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Whera current tax or deferred tax arises from the initlal accounting for a business comblnation, the fex effect is

included In the accounting for the business combination.

3.17. nd ent
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Land and bulldings held for use In the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at thelr canying amounts, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Praperiles in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes ara carled at cosl, less any racognised
impalment loss. Cost Includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, komowing costs capitalised In accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are dassified to the appropiiate calegories of property, plant and equipment whan completed and
ready for intended use. Depreclation of these assets, on the same basls as other properly assals, commences when the assets are

ready for thelr intended use.
Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumuiated depraciation and accumulated Impalrment losses,

Depreciation is racognized as i write off the cost or valuation of assets (other them frechold land and properlles under construction)
less thelr residual valies over thelr useful lives, using the siraightdine method. The esfimated useful lives, residuat values and
depradiation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting perlod, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basls.

An ltem of property, plant and equipment Is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are axpected lo arise
from the confinued use of the assel. Any gai or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
s datermined as the difference between the sales proceeds end the camying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or foss.

The estimated useful fives for the current and oémparatlve periods are as follows:

Bulldings B0 years
Structures 10 years
Plant and equipment 3-25 years
Vehicles 5 years
3.18. Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separaiely:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are camed at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impaimment losses, Amoriisation is recognised on & siraight-line basis over their astimated useful fives. The estimaied
ussful fife and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with tha sffect of any changes In estimate being
accounted for on a prospeciive basls. Intanglble asseta with indefinite useful fivas that are acquired separately are carrled at cost less

accumulated Impairment losses.

Intangible asseis acquired in business combination

Intangible assets acquired in & business combination and recognized separatsly from goadwill are inltially recognised at thelr fair
value at the acquisition date (which Is regarded as thelr cost).

Subsequent to iniflai recognition, Intangible asssts acquired In a business combination are reported al cost less accumulated
amoilisation and accumulated Impalrment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired saparately,

Derscognilion of infangible assels

An ntangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Galns or
Ipsses arsing from derecognition of an intangible assef, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised In profit or loss when the asset is derecognised

314 Emission quotes

The Group recelves emission rights free of charge in Hungary and in Poland in the context of the Eurcpean Emissiens Trading
System. The rights are credited amnuelly, the Group must return them on the basis of the actual emission.

The Group uses the net labliity method when accounting for the emlssion rights it recelves pursuant to which reserves are only
accounted for when the actual emission exceeds the amount of emisison rights recelved and silll held.
Emission rights purchased from third parties are registered at acquisition value and they are accounted for as reimbursement rights, in

other words, they are allocated to emission liabilities and are re-valued at fair vaiue.

3.20.
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At the and of each reporting period, tha Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intanglble assets to determine whether
there is any Indication that those assets have suffered an impalment lose. If any such indicaflon exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset Is estmated In ordar to determine the extent of the iImpalment loss {if any). When it Is not possible o estimate the recoverable
amount of an Individual asset, the Group esfimales the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistant basls of aflocation can be ldentffied, corporate assels are also allocated {o Individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated fo the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

gllocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinfte useful ives and Inangible assets not yst available for usa are tested for Impaiment at least annually,
and whenaver there is an indication that the asset may be Impaired.

Recaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use. In assessing valug In use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted te thelr prasent value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market aseessments of the time value of
mioney and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recovarable amount of an asset {or éash-ganeraﬂng unit) is estimated o be lass than its carrylng amount, the carrying amount of
the assst (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is recognised Immediately In profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset i camed at a revaluad amount, In which case the impalimaent loss Is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impsinment loss subsequantly reverses, the camying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unif) Is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable ameunt, but so that the Increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determinad had no Impalment [oss been recagnised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years, A reversal of an
Impalment Joss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset Is carried at a revalued amount, In which case

the reversal of the Impaimment loss Is ireated as a revaluatlon increase.

3.21. ventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cosls of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out ("FIFO")
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price Tor Inventorles less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale,

3.22. Provisions

Provisions ara recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or construciive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be required fo sattle the obligation, and a refiakle estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to setfie the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking Into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision Is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carmrying amount Is the present value of thosa cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is materiaf).

When some or all of the economic bensfite required fo setlle 2 provision are expaciad to be recovered from a third party, a receivable
Is recognised as an asset If It Is virlually certaln that relmbursement will be recsived and the amount of the recelvable can be

measured reliably.
Contingant llabllities

Contingent liablilties acquired In a business combination are Intially measured at falr value at the acqulsition date. At the end of
subsequent reporting periods, such confingent labilities are measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with |AS 37 Provistans, Contingent Liabllitles and Contingent Assets and the amount Intiially recognised loss cumulaiive
amorlisation recognleed in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue,

3.23. Flnancl mel

Financial assets and financial Kablliles are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
Instrument,

Financlal assets and finencial Nabilities ara initially measured at fair value. Transacton costs that are directly atributable to the
acquisition or lssus of finandlal assets and financlal liabliities {other than financlal assets and financlal liabilifies af falr value through
prafit or loss) are added to or dedusted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilliies, as-appropriats, on inifiaf
recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financtal assels or financial fiabilifies at falr value through profit

or loss are recognised immediately in profit or less.

Finencial assels
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Financial assels are classified into the following spacified categorles: financial assels at falr value through profit or loss {'FVTPLY),
held-to-maturity (“HTM") Investments, available-for-sale ("AFS") financlial assets and loans and feceivabies. The clagsification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financlal assets and Is determined at the time of Initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecogniged on & trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assels that raquire delivery of assets within the ime frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.

Effactive interest method

The sffeciive Interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period, The effective interest rate is tha rate that exactly discounts estimated fufure cash recelpts (induding all fees and
pointe paid or recelved that form an integrel part of the effective Interest rate, transacfion costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expecied lifa of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carying amount on initial

recegnition.

Income s recognised on an effective interest basis for debt Instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are olassified as at FVTPL when the financlal asset Is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset Is dlassified as held for trading it

¢+ ithas been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
+  on nitlal recognifion it Is part of a portfolio of identified financial Instruments that the Group manages logether and has a

recent actual pattern of shori-term profit-taking; or
«  jtis a derivalive that is not designated and effeclive as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

«+ [t forms part of a coniract contalning one or more embedded derivatives, end JAS 38 Financial Insiruments: Recognition and
Measuremenl pemits the entire comblned contract {asset or liabllity) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financlal assets at FVTPL are stated at falr value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recopgnised in profit or loss. The
nel gain or loss racognized in profit or logs incorporates any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset and is'included i the
*other gains and losses' line ifem In the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income.

Held-to-maturity investments

HTM Investiments are non-derivative financial assats with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group has
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to Initial recognition, HTM investments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method lass any Impalmment.

Available for safe inanclal assets

AES financial assets are non-derivatives that are elther designated as AFS or are nol classified as loans and receivables, HTM
invesiments or FVTPL.

Listed redeemabile notes held by the Group that are traded In an activa market are classified as AFS and are stated at fair value at the
end of each reporling period, The Group also has Investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active market but that are
also classified as AFS financlal assets and stated at fair value af the end of each reporting period (because the directors conslder that
falr value can be refiably measured). Falr value is detennined based on market prices or Iin case of reliable obtalnable market pricas,
valuation mode is applied es altemative method. Changes In tha camrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relaling to
changse in forelgn currency rates (see below), Interest income calculated using the effective interast method and dividends on AFS
equity investments are recognised in profil or loss. Other changes In the carrying amount of AFS. financial assets are recognised In
other comprehensive Income and accumulated under the heading of invesiments revaluation reserve. When the invesiment is
disposed of or is determined o be Impeired, the cumulaiive gain or loss previously accumulated In the invesiments revaluation

raserve is reclassifled to profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equlty Instruments are recognised In profit or lose when the Group's right to receive the dividends Is astablished.

The falr velue of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in & forelgn currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the reporting periad. The forsign exchange gains and losses that are recognised in
profit or Josg are determined based on the emortised cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchangs gains and losses are

recognised in other compréhensive income.
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AFS equity Invesimaents that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose felr value cannot be reliably measured
with a valuation model as an alfemative approch and derivatives that are linked to and must be setfied by delivery of such unquoted
equily investments are measured at cost lass any Identified Impairment losses at the end of each reporting period,

Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an activa markat
Loans and recelvables are measured at amoriised cost using the effective Interest method, less any knpairment.

Interest income Ia recognised by applying the effective Interast rate, except for shorlterm recelvables when the recognition of Interest
would be immaterfal.

Impairment of financial assels

Financlal assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of Impainnent at the end of each reporting perfod. Financlal
essels are considered to be impaired when thers is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that ocourred after the
initial recognition of the firanclal asset, the estimated future cash flows of the Investment have bean affected.

For AFS equity Investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the falr value of the security below its cost Is considered to be
objective svidence of Impalrment.

For all other financlal assats, objective svidancs of impairment could include:

«  gignificant financlal difficulty of the issusr or counterparty: or

*  breach of coniract, such as a default or defingquency in interest or princlpal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

*  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial dificulties.

For certaln categories of finandial assets, such as trade recelvables, assels that are assessed not to be Impaired individuatly are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collecfive basls. Objective evidence of impalimment for a portfolio of receivables could Include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an Increasa in the number of delayed payments In the porifolic past the average
credit pariod, as well as observable changes In national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on recsivables.

For financial assets camied at amortised cost, the amount of the impalmment loss recognised Is the difference beiween the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of esfimated future cash flows, discounted st the financial asset's original effective interest

rate.

For financlal assets carried at cost, the amount of the Impaimment loss ie measured as the diffierence between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimatad future cash flows discountsd at the current market rate of retumn for a similar financial
assel. Such impalment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financlal asset is reduced by the Impalrment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, whére the carrying amount fs reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade recelvable Is consldered
uncollectible, it Is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounis previously wiitten off are credited
agslnst the allowance account. Changes In the camrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial assel Is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or loszes previously recognised In other comprehensive
Incoma are reclassified to profit or loss In the peripd.

For financial assels measured at amortised sost, If, in a subsequent perfod, the amount of the Impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring afier the Impairment was recognised, the previously recognised Impairment
loss fe reversed through profit or loss fo the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the Impalment is reversed
does not exceed what the amorlised cost would have been had the impalrment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securifies, impairment losses previously recognised In profit or lose arg not reversed through profit or loss.
Any Increase in fair value subseguent to an impalrment loss is recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve, In respect of AFS debt securities, impalmment Ipsses are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss If an increase In the fair vaius of the invesiment can be objectively related 1o an event ocourring after the recognition of

the impaimment loss.

Derecognition of financiel assals

The Group derecognises a finanolal asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when If transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transiers
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nor relains subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues {o conirol the transferred assat, the Group recognises its
retalned Interest in the asset and an associated liabllity for amounts It may have to pay. if the Group reiains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financlal asset, the Group continues to racognise the financial assst and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recelved. -

On derecognition of a financlal assst in s enflrely, the differance helwesn the asset’s camylng amount and the sum of the
conslderation received and recelvable and the cumtiative gain or loss that had besn recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equily is recognised in profit or [oss.

On derecognition of a financlal asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an optlon to repurchase part of a
transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financlal asset batwaen the part it continues to recognise
under continuing Involvement, and the part it no ienger recognises on the baslis of the relative falr values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carying amount allocated to the part that Is no longer recognised and the sum of the
conslderation recelvad for the part no longer recognised and any cumulstive gain or loss allocataed to i that had been recogniced in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive Income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognisad on the
basls of the relative falr valuas of those paris.

3.24. Financial llsbliities and equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Dabt and aqulty inetruments issued by a group entity are classified as afther flnanclal fabilitles or as aquity In accerdance with the
substance of the contractual arangements and the definitions of a financial lisbltity and an equity instrument.
Equity Instruments

An aquity instrument le any contract that evidences a residusl interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its labilitles.
Equity Insfrumants Issued by the Group are recognised at the proceads recsived, net of direct Issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equily Instruments Is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or koss Is recognised In
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, Issus or cancellation of the Company’s own equily Insiruments.

Firancial llabilitles
Financlal liabilities are classified as either financial {fabllites at FYTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial fiabllities are classified as at FVTPL whien the financlal Ifabiiity is elther held for trading or it Is deslgnated as at FVTPL.
A financlal liablility other than a financial ltability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon Inial recognition If:

+  such designation ellminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

or
*  the financlel flabillty forms part of a group of financial asssis or financial liabililes or both, which Is managed and is

peiformancs is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment

strategy, and informafion about the grouping Is provided intemally on that basis; or
+  Itforms partof a contract containing one of more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financlal insfruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits tha antire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FYTPL.

Financla! llabilitles at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial abilitles

Cther financial llabliitles {including borrowings and trade and other payablas) are subsequenfly measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Tha effective Interest method |s & methed of calculating the amortised cost of a financial labllity and of allocating Interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective inlerest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimaled future cash paymaents {inciuding all fees
and points pald or received that form an Inlegral part of the effectlve Interest rate, fransacion costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expecled life of the financial llablity, or (where appropriate) a shorter perlod, to the net camying amount on initial

recognition.
Finenclal guaraniee contracts

A financial guarantes contract Is a contract thal requires the Issuer to make specified paymants to relmbursa the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor falls to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Financial guarantee coniracts issued by the Group are Initialy measured at thelr falr values and, If not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequantly measured at the higher of:

*  the amount of the obligation under the contract, as detarmined In accordance with |AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabfiies

and Contingent Assets; and
*  the amount Initially recognised less, where appropriste, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue
racognition policies.
Derecognition of financial llabliities

The Group derecognises financial l[abilities when, and only when, the Group's cbligations are dlscharged, cancailed or they expire.
The difference beiween the camying amount of the financial iiabllily derecognised and the consideration pald and payable is

recognised in profil or loss.

Derivative financial instrumertts

Derivatives are initially recognised at feir value at the date the derivative contracts are entered Inte and are subsequently remeasured
to thelr falr value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised In profit or loss immediataly.

3.25, Eamings per share

The Group presants basic and diluted eamings per share ("EPS”) data for lis ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculatad by dividing the
profit or losa atirlbutable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluled EPS s determined by adjusting the profit or loss attibutable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potenttal ardinary shares.

3.26, Servige Concassion Agreemenfs

in accounting for public-to-private service concession agresments, the Group applles the following principles.
The provisions In interpretation 12 of the IFRIC are applied If the following conditions are met in case of 8 public-to-private service

concesslon agreement; (a) the concession grantor has control cver or can regulate what services, to whom and at what price are to
be provided by the operator using the infrastructure; and (b} at the end of the agreement, the concesslon grantor will control, through
ownership, benaficlary rights or otherwise, all the major resldual assets relating to the infrastructure.

According fo the terms of such agreements, the operator works as & senvice provider. The operator bullds or dovelops the
Infrastructure used for providing public services (construction or development sandces), and operates and maintalns the infrastructurs

for a definfte period of time (operating services).

If certsin contracts made with public authorities meet the above conditions then the infrastructure covered by such a contract wilf not
be recognized In the Group's accounts as real estate property, machinery or equipment.

In the case of such contracts, the consfruction or development sendoes provided by the Group will be presented at the actual valus
set out in the cantract, whether recelved or recelvable. The consideration set out In the contract will be accounted for as a financial

assel or intangible as=et,

Consfruction or development services provided by the Group will be presented as financial assets if, on the baale of the contract, the
Group has an unconditional contractual right to recelve funds from the concesslon grantor (local municipality) or at the latter's
instruction in retum for the construction or development services; and the concession grantor has no or hardly any chance for avolding
payment because the contract Is lawfully enforceabls. The Group is entilied to recsive funds If the concession grantor provides a
contraciual guarantes that It will pay & fixed or calcutable amount to the Group or pay the differance between the amounts recelved
from the users of the public service and the fixed or calculable amount set out In the confract.

Construcfion or development services provided by the Group will be presented as Intangible assats if, on the bagls of the contract, the
Group acquires the right (licence) o charge a fes on the users of the public service. In this case the cosis of raising loans for the'
agraement will be capitalized during the consiruction or implsmentation phase of the agresment.

{f the construction or developrient services provided by the Group are paid partly in cash and parily by Intangible assets then the
respective parts of the consideration so received will be accounted for separately.

If the Group has contractual obligations to malntain or restore the infrastructure taken over ar developed by it then these obligations
shall be accounted for in the financial statements at the value estimated at the time of preparing the statements.
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An opsraiing segment is a component of the business antity:

a. which conducts business activities Involving revenues and expenditures (including revenues and expenditures related to
transaclions that are conduoted with other components of the same business entity).

b. the operating results of which are regularly reviewed by the key operaling decision maker of the business entity to be able
{o make a decislon regarding the funds fo be allocated to the segment and to evaluata its performance, and

¢.  Inrespect of which separate financial information is available.

The Group detarmines and presenis operating segments based on the information that s provided internally to the Board of Dlrectors.
For this purpose the Group categorizes its aperafions into geagraphical segments. The segmentatlon was adopted when preparing
thesa consolidated financlal statements.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

With respect to the application of the Group’s accounting poficles, the management has to make declsion, estimates and assumption
as fo the reglsiration value of the assets and labilities that cannot be dearfy determined from other sources. The estimates and
related assumplions are based on past experience and other faciors that are considered relevant. The actual resulis may be different

than these estimates.

The estimates and the assumptions on which they are based must be roviewed continuously. The modifications of accounting
estimates must be recognised In the period when the modificaion was made If the modification only affects this perlod, or In the
period when the modification was mada and the periods after that if the modification affects the period under review as well as the

future.

The following describes the critical decisions - with the exception of those that contalin sstimates - that the Group made in the context
of the application of Its accounting policies and which made the biggest Impact on the amounts presented in the financial statements.

4.1. Provigiona

Provigion Is recognized and measured based on IAS 37 Provisions, Conlingant Liabliitles and Contingent Assets. The enfitss of the
Group s involvad in a number of ongoing legal disputes. Based upon hislorical experience and expert reports, the Group assesses
the developments in these cases, and the likelthood and the amount of polential financlal losses which are appropriately provided for.

A provision is recognized l;y the Group when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, It Is probable that an outflow of
resotrces embodying economic benefits will be required to settis the obligation, and a reliable sslimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation.

42, Cocesslon rights valuatton

The Group is reccgnized the value of the project at Gyergydszentmiklés according to the standard of IFRIC 12 Senvice Concession
Agreements. During the caloulation the Company estimated the future net income of the prolect and detemined the realiseable value
laas cost to sell. During the determination of the falr value the Company calculatad with discounted future cash flows. These future
cash flows represents the management's best estimation. The detalls of the concesslon contract is disclosed In the Note 13.

The company measured all componsents of the Hungarian portiolio both in terms of assets and contracts, that is, on the basis of the

net present value calcutations, These asaels are presented between financlal assets in the stalement of financlal position , their book
value Is 5,387,068 EUR as of December 31, 2015 and 5,728,710 EUR as of Decembaer 31, 2014.

4.3. i L&) lant and equi

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of properly, plant and equipment &t the end of each reporting perlod_'Durlng the current
year, the management determined that the useful lives of the properties, plants and equipments remained as In the previous years.

4.4.

impafrment on property, plant and equipmant or on intangible assets is determinad based on esfimations conceming the recoverable
amount of those assets. Changes in accounting estimates relating to asset Impalrment (estimates of the asset's fair value less cost to
self and value in use, the free cash flow ssiimate, considerations regarding the discount rate, etc.} could have a material Impact on the

resuits of the Group.
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In respect of tangible and intanglble assets, the recovery on the business entity's assets is tested in the context of an impairment test.
The corrections that appear necessary on the basis of the Impairment test are presented by the Group In these consolidated financlal

statements.

4.5 ining the Fair Value in

In case of acquisitions tha Group determines the falr value of the assels and llabliltlas of the company or companies asquired. .

The aesats transferred by the acquiring entity In exchange for control over the acquired entity as well ag any obfigations assumed
shall be valued at the fair velue as at the time of the acqulsition.

The costs of acqulsition will be presented in the profit and loss statement.

A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for all deduclible temporary differences to the extent that it ls probable that taxable profit will
be avallable agalnst which the deductible temporary difference can be ufilised. The management needs to make substantiat
assumptions with respect to the potential deferred tax, as well as about the fima and amount of the profit which creates the tax base In

view of the tax-planning sirategy.

In the current year the Group followed a conservative approach and cakulated only with the fulure cash flows of the curranily
contracted projects and deterrained the future ulllizable defemred tax asset In that way. This business plan does not consider the

utllization of the fufure free cash generated by the current engagements.
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5. Revenue
Continued operations
2014
Modified®
Heat sales 447 0M 2 605 743
Other (revenua ar2 B2a 1 102 750

Osszesen 3793 497

The Group recognise its revenue mainly from sale of electricity and heat energy. The sold heat energy derived from the Group own
production, the electricity derived partly from own production and party from extemal parly. Electric energy salee derlved from the
Groups operafions in Poland, which is considered by the Group as acfivitias terminating in the raference year.

*The figures for the business year of 2014 were comested, ses note 12,

6. Cost of sales
Conlinued operations

2014

Cost of mediated services
Materia! costs

Cost of sold goods
Tofal cost of sales

Modified

1 B3 5z2 30381568
683 636 -1 452 536
33 565 3038168

- _ 1627723 1 870 927

A significant poriion of the value of Intermediated services conslzle of the cost of public ulllity charges re-Invoiced in the course of

operation.
“The figures for the business year of 2014 were corected, see note 12,

7. Personal costy
Continued opsrations

2014

Wages end salaries
Soclal securily contribustions

Other erﬂﬁlm-fm banallis

KModificd

G20 TB1 561 423
144 219 181 049
¥ 0a7 9145

The head count figure of the group is 169 as of Decamber 31, 2015 and 174 as of December 31, 2014,

*The figures for the business year of 2014 were corrected, sese note 12.

8. Service used
Continued oparatione

Malntanance costs 258 770
Rental fees 169 462
Advisory fees 132 681
Other services 103 563
Lage) fers 81 650
Bznk charges 22 436
Office, communication 17 807
Insurance fees 16 193
Properly related services 3 840
Car oparafion costs 1768

THE534

2094 Mochibed®

204 604
195 273
362038
2812
93 817
33318
31187
16 048

Serviceused

*The figures for the business year of 2014 were comracled, see note 12.
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2. Other revenue and expendifure

Continued operations

2015 2014
Other revenue modified”
Raversal of impairment of assets 2756 717 1159108
Credited fines 719 620 -307 715
Revergal of provisions 600 351 1365962
Impalrment of assels ar5 994 0
Assumption of debt 235 265 0
Other goverment granis 72 413 14 498
Other revenues 315621 383 636
Profitfloss on bankruptey of subsidiary (-) ] 121012
Govemment grants for emission quotas {Poland) 0 0
Total 5 166 041 2738516
Qther expendiiure
Impaiment of assels 9 349 306 203 805
Provislon made during the year 858 375 1881148
Performance penalties 441 447 0
Net loss on sale of plant, property and equipment 432 252 26189
Other expenditures 252 803 360
Other taxes 54 114 103 556
Total 11 388 097 2215058

.Other incomsa and expenses (net} . +6 222 056

*The figures for the business year of 2014 were correclsd, see note 12,

10.Financlial Income
Continued nnerations

et foretgn currency gain f 1oss {-) 82 025 52187
Interest income 76 868 148218
Inierest expense -38 328 0
Impairment of financial assets 0 0
Loss realized on sale of assoclates 7 803 476 0
Other finance Income 523 004 174 260

Other finance cost - -1 881 039 -71 604
Net profitfloss from financial astivities| = I 361 061

*The events related to compenles held for sale and excluded consolidation for other reason are presented in note 17.
*The figures for the business ysar of 2014 were corrected, see nots 12.

11. Income tax

Confiniad onaratinns
2015 204" Modifad
Corporate Income tax -924 8560 -262 798
Local business tax 35710 -25 234
Deferred tax loss (-} / gain 868 061 ~272 268

547 312

Cha 3

Total in

“The figures for the business year of 2014 were comectad, see note 12,
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Applicahle to nrofite of tha conenlidatad eniditiac ge fnflaws:

31 December 2015 371 Decamber 2014
Hungary- income tax (500 tHUF profits under) 1% 1
Hungary- Income tax (500 tHUF profits over) 18% 19%
Hungary - Local business Tax 2% 2%
Poland - income fax 19% 19%
Remanian - Income fax 16% 16%

Movement table of Impairment of deferred taxes:

3 Deoembar 2015 3 Decembar 2014
Bafance at January 1 | 2611170 4188 482
-1 521 947 -B72 874

0 125 562

2 089 223 3 E11.1%¢

Impairment movernent table

mpalrment of dofarrad tay aeaate and lisbilllies:

31 Poconber 20015 A1 Decontber 2014

Deferred Tax Assets 418 937 1 2b7 568
Deferred Tax Liabliiles =222 547 -115 335

T T R SR Tt T 19220

Defarred Tax receivably (liability) lirl:::ﬁ:_r"‘_ 1 f e :..I,: Change L‘i:ur::::-'._:_:‘::;:'{
Loss acoruabie urnder iax iaw 4 891 673 -Z240 422 4 940 251 -2 376 20§ Z 207 954
Impaltment of assats 514 4 15260 530174 -56 968 464 206
Tangible and Intangible assets
(including reservas for fulure -813 097 188 915 <624 182 401 607 -222 575
investments) _

Risk proviafon 271 609 16716 287 326 -372 185 -84 860
Adlusiment due to appifcation of 235291 476792 241 501 47 261 288 762
Impakrment of deferred tax asset -4 158 4682 547 312 =3611 170 1521 947 -2 089 223
Adjustment reganding bond o N 0 o 0
repurchase program

Other 244 112 -8B 776 166 336 5716 149 620

Net deferradiax roceivables | 1186 021 1 142 233 545843

“(liabilities)
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12. Discontinued operationg

In the second half of 2015, the Group signed a confract to sell the Polish ENEFI Polska. The sale and purchase took place In
February 201 6. The profit of ENEF? Polska and s subsldiary Elektrocieplownla Mislec Spolka z.0.0. in 2015 is stated as a
discordinuing operation and, based on IFRS 5, it represents a separated geographical region in the Group's portiollo.

No similar event took place in 2014.

Revenue 18 620 233
Other revenues / expenditures 561 904
Net profitfloss from finenclal aciivities 244 419
Total revenues 19426 616
Expenditures -16 757 945
Profit before tax 2668671
Alirbutable Income tax expenses 656 632
Impsaimment of recelvahles related to discountinued operations 0
Loss on discountinued operations in previous years 0

Profit for the year form discontinued operations [ altributable 1o 2012 039

owners of l]ha company)
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13. Intangibie assets

Sollware and CO2 guola
mible

Costs
647 280 18 266 284

January 1, 2014
Additions - 15675 204 1665 247
Disposals - - Geo 628 - €69 628
22348 - 1212 116

impalrment

Effeots of movements in exchange rates
Bacember 31, 20147 16 147 86T

50 4B3
17950 306

1.575 204

Addillons 26 898 8032 - 33930
Disposals - - 63 352 - - 53 352
Disposals due to discontinued operations - 374 456 1218 - 1576204 - 193844

130277
15893 165

Effects of movements in exchange rates 130 235
- December 31,2015 15 660 074

Amortization

January 1, 204 11 786 627 180 592 11957 218
Addltons 716 084 33720 - 750 704
Revarsal of Impalrment - 424 434 - . - 424 434
Transfer to assets held for sale - 1252 457 40 342 - - 1212116
Effects of movements in axchang - 15 072 . 42 286

Decernber 31,2014] 10821 648 11,028 0B

Additions 2523088 28011 - 2 561 089
Dleposals - - 27 816 - - 27 816
Disposals due to discontinued operations - 48 402 14 219 - - 37183
Effects of movements In exchange ratas - 130038 - 11 DR4 - - 150 092

December 31, 2045 | 13157 260 13365 059

Carrying amounts

At January 1, 2014 5224 403 437 383 647 280 6 309 085
Al Dacamber 31, 2014 5326 219 59 795 1 575 204 6981217
At December 31, 2015 2 502 808 25 208 ' - 2520 106

Concassion right Ia related to the Company's Romanian project. These rights provide exclusive heat salss rights in the coming
20 years, Although the Company's affiialed enterprise in Gyergydszenimikids terminated the concassion contract with the
Municipallty of Gyergysszentmikiés, the court made a final decision and obligad the company fo continue the service, therefore,
the concession confract Is sfill in force. No impalrmant calculated on intangible assest and software. The concesslon righis are
amortized In 25 years, the depreclation for software and other Intangibles Is 3 years on a linear base.
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The condlilons of concession righfs:

Essantlal B agreo )

ylewpoint of cagh-fiow

Rlghts peortaining to the usage of the assets

Obligations ervi wi

Obligations regarding the service, rlghts with
regard to expecting the provision of servige

Obligatio: ing the ant or

gopstruction of properties, machines and
eguipment

Obligs liver, an to acqguire

ssots at i of the ¢o lon

perlod

Options for renewal or termination

nd obligations (e.g. es: | large-
stals repalrs),
Changes to the agreement taking place during the
period

14, investmenis in affiliated companies

All data In EUR unless otherwise Indicated.

livwgheni)

E-STAR CDR signed a concession contrast wiih the Cily of Gyeigydszenmikis
for 25 years oh 13.09.2010, Thus it Is the right and obligation of E-STAR CDR to
operate distant heating in GyergySszentmiklés and to administer the distant
heatlng Infrastructure. The purposes of the contract are as follows:
Operating dizlant heating in Gyergydszentmikids In conformily with the
commerclal conditions.
- Improving the living conditions of the consumers by providing effective
and good-quallty heating service.
Permanent development of the heating eystem.
Environment profection.
By signing the concession coniract, E-STAR CDR essumes the following
obllgatlons
EUR 74,078, annual concession fee. For the whole contracting period
this is 1,851,080, which Is payable in the first & years of the contract, In
an equal quartarly breakdown.
- Taking over debis of EUR 604,744 from the previous service provider,
which is payable within 3 months from eigning the contract.
- Taking over a banking credit Instalment of EUR 891,266 from the
previous service provider .
- Paying In-progress investments made in 2009 in the amount of EUR
8,314,190, payable within 3 months from slgning the contract.
Upon the explry of the concession contract, all asssts related to the distant
gheatlng system must be transferred to the ity of Gyergybszmlmlklés free of
arge
Obllgallons:
Grantad servica licence
- Qbligation ta provide sefvice, providing continuous service,
- observing the operational parameters and performance requirements
prescribed In the task block and in the distant heating regulations,
- supporfing the price modlfication and submitting if for approval,
- paying the concession fee by the deadline,
- carrying out the Investment and fulflling other obligalions assumed in
the contract,
- in the case where the conlract expires or it Is terminated, providing
service uniil relum {o the concession grantor, but at most for 90 days.
Taking over 20 distant heating employees.

Direct Service right, collecting the charge for distane heating,

= applying the distant haating price,

- submiiing a modification proposal,

= submitting a coniract modification proposal,

- terminating the contract if the confracting partner falls to meet its

obligations.

Teking over the paying in-progress invesimenis worth EUR 8,314,180, and
carrying out the investments speclfled in the contract.

The essets reneh'red under concession and fhe investments undertaken and
completed by the concessionaire go over Into the ownership of the party granting
the concession free of any charges and encumbrances.

Concession for another 12.5 years s possible after the expiry of the 25 years as
agread by the parlies at that tme. Termination of contract by any party if the
conhtract Is violated by the contracting partner ar by the concession grantor If
required by & local Inerest {(subject fo the payment of damages).

{# is the obligation of E-STAR CDR to carry out all maintenance work and other
required investments during the term of the congession contract.
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The Group disclose a8 an affillated company the 21,85 % share in Enengia Euro Park Sp. z 0.0. within the Mielec Spélka z 0. 0.
This share added to the Group in 2013, this fransaction presented In the note 17 with more datalls.

20151231 2014 1234
Current assels 3411838 3005 075
Non-current assefs 3283 841 3577917
Current liablllties 1 368 696 1433 245
Non-current llabllifies 279 814 560 142
Revenue 9984 755 10 391 855
Profit or ioss from continuing operafions 620 454 720 568
Dividends received from the associate during the year 0 33018
Net assets of the assoclate 6047 168 4 580 605
Proporiion of the Group's ownership interest In Energla Euro Park 21,65% 21,65%
Forelgn cumency exchangs gain (loss) 33 400 34 705

Carring value of investments in associated companieg 1053312

Profitfioss.on associafed companies | 157 022
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15, Tangible assets

Plantand Cither Assot undor
BuipmEng LA TR TR TR constrction

Land ang
IJ.III|_J-||u'_;

Total

Costs orded cosls
January 1, 2014 5042712 14031970 80 359 2701 234 22 TEE 282

Additions 120519  -330853 24 497 1611 500 1416 953
Capitalizations 0 0 0 -B68 079 -868 079
Disposals 128685  -556194 34 -2 550 601 379
Reolassification 1509011 34329006 380 360 582385 5008 581
Effacts of movemaents in exchange rates -184 722 -780 130 -15 085 -244 821 -1 204 747
‘December 31, 2014 T 250 742 15 BOB 820 476 214 3779760 27324 611

Additions 865 961 1644 708 36 108 1008 285 3 555 092
Caplislizations ! 0 ¢ a -1 008 285 -1 003 285
Disposals 1467783 -1 3?1 :1’;; -52 985 -686 908 -3 560 387
Reclassification -6420214 459 -127 497 -2 553237  -23 256 407
Effects of movements in exchanos rates -2 ARY 81 263 -250 -1 105 57 021
. December 31, 2015 244 849 1957 6M 3317 585 528 510 3 102 645

Dapraciation and impairmant
Janunary 1, 2014 [ TTe 842 Z 410300 36 156 1091 412 4°325 519

Dapraciation for the year 310 293 884 758 44 432 0 1239 483
Disposals 114 472 442 565 -2 B83 0 559720
Impairment loss o 0 D 46 207 46 207
Reversal of impairment 0 -25 217 1] 0 25217
Reclassification 754240 4785847 224 021 141 672 5905580
Etfects of movements in exchange rates -4F 818 411 151 -16 679 -21 084 -484 842

. December 31, 2674 1683 085 7210 781 284 847 1258 187 10 437 070
Deprecialicn for the year 4236 122 140 7158 0 133 534
Disposels 0 -G687 BB5 221 0 -589 826
Impalrment loss 0 0 0 0 0
Reversal of impairment o 0 0 0 0
Reclassification -1 541604 -5 146 251 -32 984 -736 571 -7 457 410
Effacts of movements in exchanga ratas -758 -47 2R 112 .1 Nas -40 247

Carrylng amounts

At January 1, 2014 5184077 118612661 54 203 1609 822 18 440 763
At Dacember 31, 2014 5576657 6598109 191 272 2521 563 16 887 601
Al Decamber 31, 2015 99 800 445 858 T4 857 7078 628 584
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16. Financial assets

Flnanclal assels ot falr valus 'Jw.:ih ﬂ! or lnas i'FVTPL"‘I

Assels from service concesslon arangemenis 26219138 §728 710

Used assumption for net present value caltulation

The discount rate is the projecl's Internal discount rate at the ime of the deal In any case.

Parlinar Maturity 2014
Projekt 1 2007.0724 2022.07.24 2064 101 2 114 896
Projekt 2 2005.11.24 2017.11.24 81885 105 802
Projekt 3 2008,11.30 2018.11.30 87 751 104 251
Profakt 4 2005.06.13 2017.06.13 60 842 B9 851
Projekt 5 2006.01.17 2018.01.17 55 213 75 344
Projekt 8 2005.06.28 2018.01.17 62 001 73808
Projekt 7 2005.10.06 2017.11.15 50 389 68 997
Projekt 8 2004.07.05 2018.07.05 40771 54 964
Projekt 9 2005.06.21 2017.06.21 42 400 48 433
Projekt 10 2005.12.29 2017.12.29 33 661 3B 133
Projekt 11 2008.08.15 2020.10.31 19115 " 22 670
Projokt 12 2008.05.20 2020.10.02 18 148 17 917
Projekt 13 2008.07.16 2017.04.30 5634 8181
TOTAL 2621913 2821 247

17. Financizl leasa receivakiles

Lighilitias from financial leasine gaeaie ot fair value throu

Recelvables from the rental fae of assels 1714 495 0

Used essumption for net present vailue caiculation

Partner Raturity

Projekt 2 2009.00.28 20240028 686775 ¢
Projekt 3 2005.10.15 20200812 2462377 0
Projekt 10 2014.42.17 2022.09.30 66 398 0
Projekt 11 2014.12,17 2022.04.30 54 013 0
Projekt 13 2014.12.17 2026.06.30 49778 0
Projekt 14 2014.12.17 2021.09.30 45 462 0
Projeki 15 2006.08.14 2018.08,14 9249 o
Projekt 17 2014.12.17 2020.08.3% 36 608 0
Projekt 18 214.12.17 2021.02.28 34 245 0
Projekt 20 2014.12.17 2020.02.21 28 DOO 0
Projekt 21 2014.12.47 2025,02.28 20 886 0
Projekt 22 2014.01.10 2019.11.30 26 597 0
Projekt 23 2014.12.17 2020.02.29 23832 0
Prajekt 24 2014.01.10 2018.12.31 211 o
Projekt 25 2014.12.17 2020.07.31 23677 0
Projekt 26 20141217 2021.12.31 23 851 0
Projekt 27 2014.01.10 2020.03.31 10508 0
Projekt 28 2014.01.10 2020.02.28 23 655 0
Projekt 20 2014.12.17 2021.02.28 21386 0
Projekt 30 2014.01.10 2019.09.30 20239 0
Projekt 32 20141217 2024.12.31 17 303 0
Projekt 33 20144217 2019.05.31 151686 0
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Projelkt 34 2014.12.17 2025.02.28 16 807 0
Projekt 36 20141217 2024,12,31 15 254 0
Projekt 37 2014.1217 2023.12.31 13 934 0
Projekt 38 2014.12.17 2021.01.31 12 020 0
Projeki 39 2014.01.10 2020.04.30 11 423 0
Projekt 40 2014,01.10 2019.11.30 9914 0
Projekt 41 2014.01.19 2020.11.30 10 0656 0
Projeki 42 2014.01.10 2019.06.30 2098 0
Projekt 43 2014.01.10 20198.04.30 2012 0
Projekt 44 2014.01.10 2024.11,30 10190 0
Projekt 45 2014.01.10 2021.04.30 8737 o
Projekt 48 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 7019 0
Projekt 47 2014.01.10 2021.05.31 7518 0
Projekt 48 2014.92.17 2024.12.21 7831 0
Profekf 50 2014.01.10 2020.03.31 3 801 0
Projekt 51 2014.01.10 2018.04.30 6 142 0
Projeki 52 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 5050 0
Projokt 53 2014.01.10 2019.11.30 5 067 0
Projekt 54 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 4004 o
Projokt 55 2014.01.10 2023.12.31 237 0
Projekt 56 2014,12.17 2021.01.31 3 658 0
Projekt 57 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 2757 0
Projekt 58 2014.01.10 2022.12.31 3491 0
Projekt 50 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 2664 0
Projekt 60 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 2 564 0
Projekt 61 2014.01.10 2019.06.30 2128 0
Projekt 62 2014.01.10 2018.12.31 1695 Y
Projekt 83 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 1695 0
Projekt 64 20141217 2021.01.31 1721 o
Projekt 65 2014.01.10 2018.10.31 1150 0
Projekt 66 2014.01,10 2018.11.30 o7 0
Projekt 87 2014.01.10 2018.11.30 737 o

Total 1714495 o
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18. Business combinationg and the effects of the changes in the consolidalion circle

No new companiss ware Included in consolldation In 2015,
In current year E-Star ESCO Kft, Including 100% share In Veszprém Megyel Nonprofit Kit-ben and In Fejér Megyel Energia
Nonprofit Kft.-were sold.

Date ot salz Ratia of shara sald % Price {ELIR)

E-Star ESCO Kft 2015.11.04 100% 3184

Fejar Meayver Energia Vaszpram Mbgyal = :
e = B -Star ESC
Narnpeofit K. Nenprofil Ke E-Siae ENOC T

2015.471.04 20159104 201517004

Tanglble assets 1 10

Deferred tax assets [ 0 0
“Total non current assety 1 10 0
Receivables from intercompany 0 0 0
Trade and other recelvables 3527 10162 32751
Accruals 0 0 59702
Cash and cash egulvalents 160 312 10 103
Total current assots 3 G6AT 10 474 102 846
Total assets | 3 688 10 484 102 6d6
Loans 0 O 0

Tolal non t’:urrent'iiaﬁilitie:

Trade and other Iabilites 24 73 150 073
Current llablliies 305 424 2086
Cther current liabilites 3450 1682 ]
Accruals 0 o 27 214
Ttat current labilitizs 5719 2189 179373

ot iabilitias : 174 373

Net assets in fair value |

Profit { loss ganerated from the sale of subsidiaries
Conslderation transfered o a 31

Sold nst assels ) -1 8285 76 T27
Profit / toss gererated fram tha sale of

subsidiaries |
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Flgures for 2014:

Goodwill 0 0 0
Dsferred tax assels '

Total nen current assets

Trade and other recetvables 12 623 6794 19417
Accruals . 0 0 0

16 475 24 363

Cash and cash equivalents
23 269 43 780

“Tota! current assets: S

Assets held for sale 0 0 0

Total

Trade and other liabliities 1716 6481 8197
Accruals } 0 0 0
"Tatal current fiabilities - - : | g = _ ' i

Tota! liahifities -

Total lizbilities

Net assets in fair valug

Net assets in fair valus at the Group

Badwiil generated by the acquisiions in 2014;

eprem Meaye|

Acquisition cost 839 038 1,677
Non controlling Interest 0 0 0
Net assets identified at the acquisition

- Badwill generated at the afquisition

Acyuisition cost

Acquisition cost In cash onash :

Acquisition cost

a
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19, Assets held for sale

ENEFI Polska was sold In February 2016. The assets and labllities related to Az ENEF) Polska, and to its subsidiary
Elektrocieplownia Mielec Spilka z.0.0. are presented as assest and liabllities held for sale.

Doecambor 31 2015 Decombor 31, 20714

Assets hald for sate 225684 T4 ¢
Liabilltias refated o assats hald for sale 15 354 466 1]

Decambar 31, 2016

Property, plant and equipment 14792 279
Intangible assets 2532 681
investments In related parties - 1058 312
Investments in assoclates . _ __164 740
Tolal ror-currend zw:—:-:ets;.:(u)la!} - 16 489 012
Inventories ' 1 527 686
Trade recelvables 2 161 636
Other receivables 43012
Accruals 128 062
Cash and cash eguivalenis 1215 343
Tolat current/assatn 5 075 729
Total assets 23564 741
Loans and other long term financial llabliites 5 880 359
Provisions 742 419
Deferred lax llabililles 353 202
Accruals and defarred Income 2934 708
Gther liabiliies 5 301 062
Total nonecurrent Habllities [ 10221 840
Trade payables 217 361
Loans and other shart term financlal Habiiities 1016 489
Provisions (current) 1801379
Accruals and deferred income 387 €99
Other llabiliiss due within a vaar 1 008 6598

‘Tota! current lighilitias
Total liabititias

Net assets | B 210 275

Net assels owneg by non controlling interest 2065 322

15 354 406

Net assets owned by the parent company |

20, Inventories

2018, clecembar 31 2014, december 31

Coal 1] 1696 592
Other fuel . 2420 0

Emission quotas g 0
Inventories gross+total]” 18 6821 2 254 387

impalrment of inventories

Inventories tatal [
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21, Trade recsivables

Bocember 31, 2015, Decombepr 31, 2014
Trade recelvablas 1221622 3841 E38

Decambar 31, 2015 Dacomber 31 2014
Not past due 118 348 2733936
Past due 0-90 days 240 25 505 916
Past due 91-180 days 73726 26 201
Past due 181-360 dave , 280723 32¢ 876

More than ong year A 1 586 207
Trade receiveable gross total - | 3404 470
=2 510 200 -1 337 387

Impalment

in respect of receivables that ware ovardue on the balance sheet day but in terme of the probability of thelr Influence - in the
opinion of the Company's mansgement - they do not pose a risk (or are covered with alhisr asasta or Habilities), the Company
did not recognise impalment.

MNin-impaived overdice reces feiliy December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
Past due 0-00 days 240 825 505 916
Pagt dua 91-1680 days 73726 26 201
Past due 181-360 days 200723 326 875

More than one yea 170 648 248 821

Total: . . j ) 5 : . 1107903
Impalrment movement table:

Impainnent movement shble 2015 2014
“Batance at January 1.| 1 2932 558 2101 676
Impairment of assets 1 553 563 246 082
Write back -258 251 -1 084 740
Exchange rate difference 74 380

Batanto at December 31 [ 2 510 200 1337 387

When examining whether a glven acoount recelvable can be realisad, the Group takes Into account the changes, If any, In the
quality of the receivable that occurred betwesn the date of the loan provision and the end of the reporting period.
The payment deadline of accounts recelvable is always 8 days.

22, Other receivables

Recelvables related to concession tights 3610124 3610 124
VAT reclaimable 28 186 406 639
Corporaie income lax recelvable 50 669 140 600
Othér tax recelvables a0 356 107 821
Loans glven 170 189 106 803
Advance Payments 17 491 45614
Government grants 0 0
Other recsivables _ 134 766 355 520

4773127
=3 610 124
1 162 9607

4 110771
=3 610 124

Othér réceivableg due Within & year

Gther Receivablis tota)
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23, Accruals

31 Decembor 2015 31 Decpmber 2014

Accrued revenue 377 240 218 865
Acorusd sxpenses 1] 378 003

Revenues due consist of the revenues that wera related to consumption in 2016 and were invoiced afier the bafance sheet day.

24. Gash and cash equivalents

2015123

Bank balances 608 964 506 886
Call deposits 34079 22115
Cash on hand 2 166 10 975

Cash and cash equivalents 539 976

25, Subscribed capitals

Decamiar 31, 2014

piece

Isgund pieces shares (10HUF par valued shares) 2T IT2 5T 21T 579

Registerad capital on par value December 31,2015,  Decamber 31, 1014
Balance at 7 January 969 968 1775283
Par value of the cancelled trassury shares during the year 0 -305 325
Batance at December 31. | 965 868 . 962 968

Novemont of isaued and Tully patd shares o %h &
Mavemuent of isaued and fully paid share Dacaiviar 31, 2005, [ecember 37 2014

Balance at 1 January 27172 579 52 531 445
Number of the cancelled freasury shares duri

Balance at December 31. |

26. Resarves

Reserves

December 21, 2015 December 31, 2014,

Share premium 41382 934 54 198 084
Forelgn cumency {ranslation ] -810 301 _ 1028 780

| Total reserves - v 93172204

Movements of the reserves

| 31 Deppmber 2074 3 Decomber 2013
Balance at beginning of year 53172 204 64 610 306

Movemenis -12 599 571 11 847 102
. ;

Bilance at the end of yeaf

The general reserve is used from fime to ime to ransfer proflis from retained profits. There Is no policy of regular transfer,
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BMovement of share premium

31 Deocember-2015 31 Decomboer 2014
Balance at begining of year 54 198 984 65 103 540
Share premium recognisad during bankrupey proceadings (1] 0
Share premium from cancellad treasunr ghares during the yes 12816050 -1G 804 556

- 41 382 933 54 198 984

Balance at the end of year [

Foraign currency tranglatlan

31 Decomber 2015 31 Docomlaer 2014

Batance at beginning of year -1 024 TBO 284 234

216478 742 540
-1 026780

=810 301

Balance at the en_d_fof yoar

Exchange diffarences relating fo the translation of the results and net assets of the Group's foreigh oparations from their
functional currencles to the Group’s presentation currency are recognized direclly In other comprehensive Income and
accumulated In the forelgn currency translatlon reserve. Exchange differences previously accumulated In forelgn ourrency
transiation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the forelgn operation,

Z7. Treasury shares

Movements of pioces-oftrensury shares M Decomber 2015 M December 2074
Opening 5 540 991 30 638 648
treasury shares hold by companies held for sale -156 553 0
Number of treasury share bought back in the period 541918 261 211
Number of the cancelied treasury shares 0 0

0 -25 358 866

Number of the cancelled trazsury sharas durina the vear

Clasing (piece} 5923357

Atfributeble to subsidizry 1057 202 1522 643
Movemoents ol book value: of easury-shares 3] Decembor 2015

Opening 17 476 856 28074 466

treasury shares hold by companles held for sale -183 730 0

Sharea recogniaed during bankrupcy proceedings 0 0

Value of treasury share bought back in the period 201 451 111 871

Book value of the cancelled treasury shares during the year 0 =11 709 881

Reclasstfication to reserves -11 326 370 0

Movemeants of lreatury ah bnoh yElHE— B GT 806
Attributabla to subsldiary 430 608 860 906

28.Non-controlling interest

20141231 2013.12:31
Balance at beginning of the year 1684 460 3 174 267
Share of profit for the year 547 466 ~137 716
Dividend paid to non-controfiing Interesis ~185 665 -580 037
Disposal of the non-controlling interests rolated to sold subsidiary o 832 186

Net forelgn axchange losses (-) / gains 0 e
2 046 270 1624 395

Balance at end of year
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28, Provigions

Emsgion quotas Employea benefits Dihor
January 1, 2014 669 627 710 858 1074042 2 435 427
Current portion of provisions (-} 669 627 94 980 284 874 1049 490
Neon-current portion of provisions 0 615 869 790 068 1405937
Provislons made during the year 905 139 64 842 821 067 1881 148
Provisions used during the year 662 742 -17 518 -111 650 -791 910
Provisions reversed during the year 0 0 -4718 317 478 17
Effects of movements in exchange rates -23 770 &0 784 -122 720 -85 735
Dacambar 31, _201[4 1 183 313 2870613
Current portion of provisiona {-) 978 254 84 863 339 826 1402943
Non-current portion of provisions 0 724 183 843 487 1 587 670
Provisions made during the year 0 0 1684 448 1 684 448
Provisfons used during the year 0 D -635 806 635 806
Disposal during the ysar -076 254 -800 046 -1 387 848 -3 175 148
Effects ofan'ln In axchanne rates [} (4] 14 269 14 259
Decemker 31, 2015 0 0 858 375
Gurrent portion of provisions (=) 1] 4] 1] 0
Non-current portion of provisions 1] 0 858 375 858 375

30. Earnings ger share

The earnings per shara index is calculated In a way that the eamings of the reporting year due to the shareholders are divided
by the weighted average of the number of common shares.

o mudl (ilaieid FiS 41 Decamber 2015 AN Docamber 2074
Proiit for the petiod aitributabie (o ordinary sharehoiders from coniinuing
operations -1 695 582 2045932
Profit for the period atiributable fo ordibary shares from disconfinuing
operations 2012039 0

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (sharas 18 489 573
Basic EPS from--qpntinuing apérations (EUR!piecedl‘.l
Basic EPS frony discontinuing operations (EUR!pietas)

Total basic EPS

Diluted EPS fronkBontinuing operations(EUR/pieces)
“Diluted EPS fronfdiscontinuing operations{EUR/piates]

Total diluted EPS
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31. Loang and borrowings
Loang and conditions:

2015 decembor 31 2014 dacsmibier 31,

Liabilities from bond lasues 0 0
Secured bank loans 0 7 893 305
Other lcans ] 600 583
Finance lease liabilifles 0 12 268

% 506 558

Financial Habilitie§ =]
Current portion of llabities from bond Issues

4]

Current portion of secured bank loans 1073 394
Cunent poriion of other loans 600 883
9429

portion of finance lease lla

Currant
Total current liabilities |

=30 O D O

bilities ,
A ak 1683 806

0
6 819 811
0

B ) i i ,_ 2839

Nan-current porlion of liabllities from bond issues
Mon-current pordlon of sectired bank loans
Non-current portlon of other loans

Non-current portion of finance lease liabilities

oo o

<

The condiions of the loans are the following:

’ : : LI . 8 2014
Fimancing Closing  Referénce Mar "
HL'.:.I.'|:'|I|; 1 e rJI-::n- F||1rrl:ll-,:.:-,r|;| h 'E-:J:.TI“ Curroncy -ﬂ-;-.;HI:III'I!L-.—'.-f t]ﬁ.-'_:'f:;l'nr:l:.l Maltlerin dispute
6804 027 Morigage on share of Mislec,
Bz2ZWBK 2017.05.31 WIBOR  3,00% PLN 0 mortgage on property.
1089 278 Collection 1 db, morlgage-1,

WIBGR 2.50% PLN 0 property mortgage 1

BEWBK 2018.12.21
: Total '

Duein aoe year (i] 1073 394

The balance stated among the deferred revenues last yoar was related to the Polish opsration sold in the business year of
2018, therefore, [t Is stated among the Habllities attached to the assets for sale.
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32. Emnpioyes Shave Ownership Program

Movement fn the present value of the defined bonafit obligatian

Defined benefit cbligation as at January 1

823 009 761 869
Current service costs 4( 956 42 531
Interest expense 27972 32125
Bensfiis pald -86 580 -109 880
Actuarial galns and losses &1 267 82 747
FX difference D 246
Buslness combinations 0 0
Defined benefit abligation as at December 31 856 814 809 048
Expense recognizes in profit and loss
Current service costs 40 856 42 5
Interast expense 27 972 32 126
Actuarial gains and losses 51 267 a2 747

Total expense recognized in profit or i08s 120 105

Actuarial assumpitions 2015 2014
Discount rate as at 31 December 2,50% 3,40%
Future salary Increases 2,50% 2,50%

This table coniains the expenditures of the Executive Share Option Program of the Poland segment,

33. Deferred income

A1 December 2

961 533

3183 956

One of the Polish subsidiarles of the Group has expanded is capacities. During 2011 they installed 2 new gas engines which
meant & significent expansion of capacilty and also decreased tha emission of pollutanis by the Group thanks io the
environmantally friendly technology. The Company received EU subsidles In an amount of PLN 14.8 miion PLN {EUR
3,814,924) for the gas engine purchase. The subeldise were accounted for In sccordance with the 1AS 20 Standard on

Accounting for Government Grenfs.

The balance stated among the deferred revenues last year was related to the Polish operation sold In the business year of
2016, therefors, It is slated among the Rabllilles attached to the asssts for sala.

34, Othsr long term liabilities

Decembar 31, 2015 Decembar 31, 2014
Other long term lisbilly regarding Romandan concession rights 0 188 504
Long tamm [kabillity fram Interest rade swap i} ATE 326

Other long term fisbiil 7 708 0
7708 673 830

Last year's other long term liabilities contains the long term Habllity of the concession rights of the projects of Romania and the
Interest rate swaps of the Poland segment.
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38. Acoruals and deferred income

3 Docombor 2015 3 December 2014

Deferred revenue 464 610 o
Currenit partion grani recelved 0 332 788
189 280 727 194

Accruad oxpuansos
653 380 .. 1059933

36. Other short term liabilities

2015, elecembior 31 2014, decambar 31

Trade payables BS1 125 3 897 175
2015 decambsr 21, 2014, dooor

Ciner taxes payabie 742 653 767 378
Wages and salaries 176 923 156 049
Soclal security 165 403 151 530
Shori-term fiabilites from Romanian concession contract

0 918 070
Advance payment received

1 124
Other liabllitles

: 46 513 347 491
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37, Related pasty transactions

Ruelated party Nature af the relatod party Reference

Soos Csaba shareholder 1. Note

The balances of transactions with the above affiliated pariners at the balance shest dats are as follows:

31 December 2014

‘Transactions affecting tha balance shast

to related party- Csaba Sobs 54778 0
Interest receivables fo rolated party- Csaba Sode 4 730 ) 0
Total | T = | ' = “

Transactions affecting the comprehenslve income
Reacelvables against related party- Csaba Sobs 0 19061
Interest income from ralated pe ‘ 3214 [t}

g

The terms and conditions of loans receivad from and granted to affillated pariners ars in line with the market conditions.

The remuneration of the Board of Directors, Superviscry Board, 2015:

Gioes honorarium 78810 74 B30

Commission fee 23 Bi7 16 523
Lota 103 427 91 353

38, Segment information
Segment informallon for the year 2015:

Hitngarinn Ramanian Polish Oihar
Met Revanues: 2315633 1604 366 0 0 3812800
Cost of Sales -842 883 ~721 107 [#] 0 =1 564 080
Gross proft | 0 0 2255 819
Materiel cost 17 858 45 784 0 0 -63 643
Personne} cost -383 607 -358 400 0 0 ~772 007
Sarvice used -539 243 <236 471 0 -12 825 <788 538
Qther revenue and expendituras. net -B 447 061 2 225 005 Q 0 -8 222 D56
‘Operation osl 0387770 554 350 5
Depracliation -206 626 -2 556 541 0 0 -2 764 167
Impairment of Properly, plant and equipment 0 0 N 0 0
Net prefitioss from financlel activities 6 618 461 73022 o -36 375 6 656 007
Net profitloss from associated companies 162 428 -413 030 0 17403 -233 189
4335 g57 E0440 0 ' -1 931784
Income tax expernse -1422 748 76 535 1] -89 D89 =1 446 203

Result from dissenfinued operafion
Net profil -3 T2 606

0 0 2012038 o 2012 039
53 555 .131 785 1 365 049
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Segment information for the year 2014:

Hungarian Romanian
Net Revenias: 21712 65m 1 G25 802 15 768 661 - 19 567 154
Cost of Sales - B50972 -  BOATS3 - 18567 - - 3412438
Gross profil 1221619 14 111950 : 16154 710
Materiel cost - 23017 - 728519 - 852304 - - 8618 550
Personnel cost - A37397 - 34220 - 2224557 - = 2976174
Service used - be68ss - 370853 - 700 402 662 - 10846448
QOther revenue and sxpendifures, net §75 993 58 188 811110 - 210555 1 134 736
: i 351 276 . 10 845 862 « 12 106 436
Depreciation - 149606 - 746161 - 1084330 - - 1900187
Impsairment of Properly, plant and equipment
pelment o prant and equla 26247 424438 - 46207 ) 403 444
Net profitfioss from financial activities 16799082 - 1643639 - 741587 616052 - 89 192
Net profitioss from essodiated companies - - 157 022 - 157 022
. Profit before tax 2 425 846 = 1843621 1 540 9B66, 2528 370
Net profil - B1G 460 | 070 557 2045 032
Aftributable to:
Owners of the company: 2385677 - 1816460 793173 406 159 1 768 548
- - 277 a84 - 277 384

Non-controlling interest

The tables contains figures of Polish segment, that iz presenied as discontinued oparation.

38. Management of financial and Market Risks

Tha Group s exposed fo risks relating fo the changes of markel and finangial conditions, These changes may have an impact
on the profit as well as on the value of the assafs and liablilties. The purpose of financlal risk management s to continuously
diminish rigks through operative and financing measures.

Tha Group ks exposed fo the following risks:

The Group is exposed to the following risks:

¢ Marketrisk
o Currency sk
o Interest risk
o Liquidity risk
o Credit sk
39.1. Market Risk

The Group's operations are primarlly exposed to the financial risk relafing to the changes of exchange rates and interest rates.
The Group does not purchase derivative financlal Instruments to cover its inferest rate and axchange rate riske.

29,2, Currency Risk

The Group makes transactions slso in forelgn cirrencles therefore It is exposed o exchange rate risk. The Group manages
exchange rate risks by means of forward currency transactions In accordance with its relevant regulation.

The Group's selling prices are primariiy determined in HUF, PLN and RON and payments aro also received mostly in these

currencies, The Group oparatas primarily in Hungary, Poland and in Romania.
The management periodically reviews contracls made in foreign cumencles and considers the opportunity of managing the

relevant risk by means of derivative transactions.
Tha Group's foreign currency denominated assets and Habillies were valued at the end of the reporting pericd as follows.
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Receivables 572 971
Trade payables -1216014
Revanue 870 839

penditure £33 153

Net position 1 060 549

Docember 37, 2014

Regelvables 1226 034
Trade payables -3 658 884
Revenue 1626 902
Expenditure -3 147 706
External loans o

Net position -3 054 T44

36.3. Sensifivify analysis:
Transaciions are mostly made in RON, HUF or PLN, our exposure to exchange rates were eveluated on the basis of the

fluctuation of the exchange rates of these three cutmencies.
The Company's exchange rate sensitivity for the year 31 December, 2015 presented in the fable below:

Exchange rate

WMovamants inoxchanae rte (%)

EUVRIREON
EURHUF

3548043 1289 265
2311758 673 044
18 51 112 2122737

-14 827 564 -2R3 518

51859833

4 617 304 2430783
5510701 -1 522 803
15 768 661 2172 591
-13 244 160 =377 734
-6 B22 750 0

EURIPLN

5820 T56 2753037

Effoot for curmmnt
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We prepared the calculation for 31 December, 2014, also:

BRI LG Effact tar s urtent

Movamanis in axchango rate [3%) EUR/RON ELR/PLN
ELIRIHUF

yoar result

97,69% 0,0031
0.217¢ 0,2292 -106 908
0,2230 0,2243 -63 505
0,2282 0,2400 ~20 282
100,00% 0,0032
0,2179 0,2282 43 313
0,2230 0,2348 0
0,2282 0,2400 43313
102,31% .0,0032
02179 0,2292 20282
,2230 0,2243 63 595
0,2282 0,2400 106 908

30.4. Risk of chanaing Inferest rate
‘Intarest rate risk Is the risk that fulure cash-flows from cerlain financlat assets and Labilities may fluctuate dua to the changes in

market Inferest rates.
A change in market inferest rates may pose a risk for the Group In the case of varlable-interest long-term loans and bonds.

The effective interest rates payable by the Group as at 31 December 2014 on lis outstanding loans were as foliows:

Effeciive interest rata 4,6%
30.5. Sensilvity apalysls

A 50 base point change In the interest environment would cause the foliowing change In the Group's profitabliity

Decamber 31, 2014.:

Intarast

Fizetendd kamat: -49 422 0 49 422
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39.6. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet Its finandial cbligafions. Liquidity risk must be managed eventually
by the Board of Diractors. The Group managss Its liquidity risk by kesping a proper lavel of reserves, bank credit Ines, reserve
loan ralsing opportunifies; and by continuously monitoring its planned and actusl cash-flow data as well as by reconclling the
axpiry dates of financial assets and liabilities.

39.7. Liguldl fable

Dacomber 31, 2015

over b
In EUR Wilhin 1year 1lo2years 2fo 5 years years Confractual Carrying
Loans ard borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other long term llabllky 0 0 7708 0 7708 7 708
Trade and other payables 2 388 217 Q [\ 0 2306217 2396217
0 " 7708 |0 |- 2403525 2403925

yviinin i aver o
InEUR year 1to2years 2o 5years years Contracfual Carrying
Loans and borrowings 1683606 1006787 6688551 0 2470144 6 506 556
Other long term labliity 0 350 042 323 788 0 673 830 673 830
Trade and other payables 7 275 047 0 0 0 7275047 7275047
Total financial liabilities L A 448 829 0 217 428 029 19 455 433

36.8. Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk that & debtor defaults on Its contractual obligations which may cause a financial loss ko the Group.

Most of the Group's customers are large multinational firms, local municipaliies, or listed firms or subsidiaries of companles
controlled by local municipalities.

Most of the Group's customers have been doing business with the Group for years and credit losses have been very rare. As a
result of the current market environment, watching the creditworthiness of partniers on a day-to-day basis became one of the
most Imporiant tasks of the menagement.

Decembear 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Not past dua 118 348 2733036
Past due 0-80 days 240 826 505 816
Past due 91-180 days 73726 26 201
Past dus 181-360 days 200723 326 B75

More than one year — 2 680 848 1 586 207
Trage refeiVable gross total [~ 3404 470 1

40. Material events after the Reporting Periced

1. Thé wansaction regarding the sale of ENEFI Polska Spolka Z.o.o. — already reported and made public by ENEFI
Energlahatékonységl Nyrt. in the reference period — was closed down after the balance sheet date.

In the coursa of the transactlon, EETEK Lid. sold ENEFI Poleka Spelka Z.0.0. above the registration value, against PLN 48.51
mn in cash, as well as In return to the value of all recelvables of ENEFI Polska agalnsi ENEFI Nyrt. {about PLN 28 million).
Under thls scheme, ENEFE Polska set up & company in majority ownership under the name Premium Fund Spolka Z.0.0., into
which ! contributed its ownership share held in E-STAR Elektrocieplownia Mieloc Spétka z 0. o,
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Upaon the sale of ENEFI Polska, the obligation of ENEF! Polska towards BZ WBK was also sold, and the buyar agreed to pre-
pay it to the Bani, furthermore the surety of ENEF] Energlahatékonysagl Nyri. for the obligations of ENEFI Poiska Sp, z 0.0,
coased to exist In the amount of max. PLN 54,000,000 + penalty of PLN 20,000,000, a fine payable in case of an eventual
breach of contract by E-Star Polska Sp. z 0.0., the term of the contract Is 15 years.

2, The Company sold it full ownership share in Itz affiliated enterprise, RFV Slovak s.r.0 (head office: Hnista, Francischondm
373, Slovakian Republic, 98101, corp. reg. no.: 44 016 972), against a symbolic purchasa price of 1 suro. RFV Slovaks.r.o
carriad out no actual activilles for years, It has no assets, however, it malntenance entails costs, therefore the Company decided
to sell it in order to simplify the corporate group and to cut the costs.

3. The Company notified its investors that ~ with regard fo its GyergySszenimikids project = significant ebove-plan depreclation
can be expested In its censolidated report for 2015, through the [FRIC 12 caleulafion. As the IAS rules say tat the Intangible
assel model must be followed In case of the GyergydszentmikdSs project, the wrile-off will affect the Intangible assets at a
consolidated level {in the case of the GyergySszenimildés and simliar projects, the IFRS presoribes to prasent In the
consolidated report the Investment made under a concesslon contract not as tangible assel but as intanglble asset, which, In the
given case, may be misleading for the less professional eyes, therefore the Company draws the esteemed Investors’ atiention
to this also separaisly), ’

4. The Company nolified its Investors that the Romanian court declded In connection with the termination of the
Gyergydszentmikiés profect that the Gyergybszentmikls affiiated venture has the obligation to provide continued service undll
the lawsuit launched on the legltimacy of the termination ls closed down.

The Company nofiied fts Investors that the court passed a rasolution that ts favourable for E-Star CDR In the lawsuit started by
the Municipality of Gyergybszentmikits, based on the information of the Gyergydszenimiklds operation, (the subject matier was
the request {o establish that tha Town earlier voted for modifying the price of remole heating, thersfore the termination by the
Company's Gyergybszentmikios company - E-Star CDR — was unlawful, and i has fo be cancelled). The court accapled the
complaint made by E-Star CDR and dismissed the Town's request to approve the planned decision on remote heating price,
togather with the ather, later submitied requests for action, The dedlsion is not final,

5. The Company deetmed It to be one of the first tasks of the newly elected Board of Diractors {0 accurately determine and ko
communicate fo the Shareholders Its short and medium term objectives regarding the Company, with special regerd to the fact
that the Company's former owners and the members of the directorial board did not agree on elaborating the Company’s

strategy.

After reviewing the Gompany's ownership structure, the Board of Directors established that the Company’s ownership structure
has recently been modified considerably as a result of the ENEF] share purcheses by EETEK Lid and their sale to the
Company. As a result of the Company's bankrupicy proceedings that were earfier closed down with success, the Company —
where, from 2013, the mejority shareholdars were the former crediiors — now oncs agaln has majority shareholders who
criginaily had real infentions fo purchase the shares. Tha number of former credlior shareholders went down Io fewer than 250
from about 2000 owners. As a result of the bankruptcy arrangement, the number of shares held by creditor-tumed-shareholders
was 50 milllon pleces. This figure went down to about 20 million after the shares that had gone 1o the affiliated ventures were
purchased by the Compeny and then withdrawn. Currently, disregarding the shares owned by the Company’s own and affiliated
ventures, the shareholders hold ‘about 7.2 million shares, and less than half of them are shares issued within tha framework of

the bankruptoy arrangsment.

The changs in the ownership siructure could have triggered growth 2t the Company, but all of the Company’s initiatives aimed
at launching new projects and setting up new businesses have falled over the past three years. During this time, the Company
kept losing Its abllities that would be of prime imporlanca for atarling growth. The projecls that were finally Implemented coversd
the purchaee of public Eghting projects that were already In progress and that could be attached to & corporate group, however,
the projects did not meet the expactations as thelr sales revenues do nof, or only scarcely go to the Campeny. The recent,
hastils purchase further deteriorated the Company’s situation, as a result, the employees kept leaving the Company, and this
already endangered the Cempany's going concern statug, especially in the audit period.

The Company's management belleves that its shares at the Budapest and Warsaw Stock Exchanges are traded well below the
per-share book value, which indicates the lack of investor confidence.

Earler, the Company communicated several imes that ceriain asset slements are evaluated In 2 conservafive mannar In is
report. This was partly proved by the recenfly concluded Polish asset sale transaction because the assst was purchased at a

price more than doubla the book value.
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Therefore, In the current sHuation, the Company's new management does nol regard it as a realistic target to set the Company
on a short-term growth track by Implementing new projects or perhape by opening new energetics businesses, However, the
eariler coneluded, traditional businesses will run out (axpire) In the next 3-8 years.

The Company's Board of Directors established its short and medium term objectivas as follows:

1. Currently, the Company’s management is focusing on surveying the damage and restoring It as soon as possile,
which will probably take the next 2-3 months.

2. Further cut on the central budgst, whereby the wages of operative managers will be reduced fo haif.

3. lssulng smployee shares for implementing the Company’s programime and swapping / converting them into registered
ENEF] shares at a target rate of HUF 300. The Board of Directors is planning fo Issue 2.5 milllen smployee shares
instoad of Issuing the appr. 4 million smployee shares that were earfler approved by the general mesting.

4,  In 2016 the Board of Directors will put to the agenda the Company's proposal for withdrawing Its own shares.

5. In the next 3-5 years, the Company will be focusing onh the following:

+  Selling the existing Hungarien projects prior to the end of thelr tarm, In conslideration of the fact that there should
always be enough coverage for the operating costs.

» Selling the last, sl operable Gyergybszentmikiés project In Romanla, In the manner agreed with the local
municipality. Should this not be sucoessful, the Company will start a lawsuit.
Closing the Romanian lawsults through an agreamant outside courl.
Utmost protsction of the corporate group's Interests and enforcing them through legal means in case of
Romanilan lawsuits where probably no agreament can be made outside court (e.g. legal diaputes arising from the
unrightful attacks of e Romanian tax authority).

s  Purchasing own shares from the amounts received by reducing the Company’s oparations in the above manner.

8. The Company nolified its invastors that ~— according fo the information by the Romantan operation — the following reasons
were given for the second-Instance resolution in the lawsuit concerning the distraint/seizure of the Company's Zilah land plot by
the Romantan tax authority (the lawsuit was won by the Company on first instance):

The court established in ite raasons that the tax authority started legitimate enforcement only on the basls of the claim of RON
265,977 out of tha clalm of RON 8,967,172. The court established with regard to the other daims that the tax authority lost the
right of collection (dus to the fafiure of registration into the Company's former bankruptcy procedurs). The Company also
disputed the claim of RON 265,977. The court rejected ithe Company’s complaint regardiess of the fact that R did not find the
enforcament lawful elther, except for the interest.

The clalm of RON 265.977 Is the interest on the sbove claim of RON 8.867.172 (RON 8.701.185 + RON 265.977 Interest),
which was established by finance despite the fact that the court already pronounced the loss of the claim of RON £.701.195
earller. The Company challenged the resolutions establishing the interest, the lawsult was won by the Company on first
instance, but on second instance the court approved the claim by finance.

In this lawsuit, the court based its resotution on this decislon.

The Company challenged the former, final resolution In form of a revislon because it cannot understand how interest can be
charged o @ capital claim that the Company s not cbliged fo pay, therefore, the Company obviously cannot be In delay. The
request for revision was rejected, and the appeal iodged agalnst this decislon [s In progress. Furthermore, the Company
reminds that the interest could not be claimed either by the Company's former creditors who were properly registered in the
bankruptey procadure because they waived it in the bankruptcy arrangement.

The Gompany emphagizes that the tax authorily [nitiated enforcement for its total daim Ih a manner that it was aware that it had
no right fo enforce it based on the formier court resolution, Apart from the above, the VAT rightfully reclaimed by the Company
was not pald fo the Company elther bacause it was compensated in its claim.

The Company will also request revision of the current, second-instance resolution.

7. The Company noiifies its Esteemed Investors that — according to the informetion of the Romanlan operation — the
Marosvésérhely High Court also rejected the appeal lodged against rejecting the request for legal remedy against the final
dacision on rejeciing the appeal against the resolution ordering the liquidation of E-Star Mures Energy SA ,under liquidation”. As
a result of the above, the company can have recourse to no more legal remedy in Romanla, tharefore 1t will enforce its claim at

an International forum.

8. MAG Zrt. Informed the Company thal an iegularity procedura was startad against It with regard to a former project involved
In & subsidy granted to small/medium-sized companies.
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Taret

According to the reasons, the Company's consolldated report for 2011 and 2012 sald that the average staff number was 504
and 449, raspectively, and, based on this, “it can be congludad that the Company s not In conformity with the tender conditions
and with fhe smallimedium sized company qualification specified in the Tender Call and Guide.” According to the reasons, #
qualifies as a breach of the contract if “the Beneficiary no longer conforms with the tender conditions due to changes in jts

ownership structurs,”

The Company expressed lis opinton that, based on the above reasons, the conditlons on starfing the Iregularity procedure do
not pravall againet It, the Company did nof breach the subsidy contract, furthermore the reasons are unfounded, contradiclory
and based on falsa concluslons. The Tendaer Call dearly says that the smallimedium sized company status Is a condition on
application. The Company fulfilled the tender condiions when applying for, and winning the tender. The Subsidy Contract and
the Tender Call and Guide do not prescribe that the applicant must kesp the smafl/medium-sized company status until the end
of the maintenance perlod. This would also be contrary to the purpose and the principle of the subsidy. The Company cannot
interpret the reason for the breach of contract mentioned In the reasons, with special regard {o the fact that the Company was a
public share company both when submitting the application and also today, there Is no relationship between the ownership
structure and the smal/medium-sized company status, furthermore, the Tender Call and Gulde and the Confract do not say that
there cannot be any change in the applicants’ ownership structure.

Regardless of the abave, MAG Zrt. established an irregularity, and after this the Company made use of ts right of appeal.

The Minlstry of National Economy approved the decision on establighing the irregularity end claimed to take actions to waive the
contract,

Aferwards the Mlnfstr); of National Economy notifled the Company about its intention to waive the contract and {o take actions
to collect the amount of subsidy on the pattern of tax collection.

~

The Company disputes the claim and will institute court actions,

41, Presentation of oif-halance sheet items and their impact on financial statements

Hungarian lawsuits in progress when preparing the report:
Plaintiff Defendant Subject matter
Tibor Botos Dr. ENEFI General mmeting resolution 04/11/2014
Energlahatékonysdgl Nyrt. | The Company won the procedure on first Instance, the plaintiff
lodged an appeal, therefore the case went fo second inslance —
contractual fees and related amounts.

Caaba Sobs ENEFt ' General mmeting resclutlon 08/01/2016
Energiahatékonység! Nyit.

ENEFI Nagydobaos Kdzség

Energlahatékonysagi |  Onkorményzata Payment of contractuzl fess

Nyrt.

ENEFI Szamosszaeg Kézség

Energiahatékonysidgi |  Onkormanyzata Payment of contractual fese

Nyrt.

Judiclal supervisory proceedings are In progress agalnst the Company at the compelent registraflon court, where the subject
matler covers the leading official mandates temminated on 31.12.2015. In the meantime the Company's genaral meeting declded

fo slect the officials.

FLEETCONGEPT Hungary Flest Management and Car Rentai Ltd. inltiated a fAiquidation procedure against ihe Company, and
this request was finally rejected by the court elsc on second-instance.
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Subject matter

Ser. Plaintif Defendant
no.

1 E-Star Mures Energy SA § retall consumers Payment of fees under the consumplion contract.

2, E-Star Mures Energy SA Filing request for bankruplcy protection on 8.2.2013,

3 E-Star Mures Energy SA Towm of Marosvésarhely | Payment of damages due to the breach of
concession contract, clalm for remote heating
subsidy and fees under the consumer contract.
Amount: RON 124.040.531,19
Wwithin this lawsuit, the Town demanded - through a
counter-action — to qualify the contract termination as
unlawfid,

4, E-Star CDR SRL 152 retail consumers Payment of fess under the consumption contract.

[3 Town of GyergySszentmiklds E-Star CDR SRL Claim of mterest calculated on the concession fee

6. Town of Gyergyészentmiklés E-Star CDR SRL The subject matter of the lawsult s that the count
should establish that the price was adopted at the
beard mesting dated 10.03,2016.

In November 2015 the Town mads a change in the
case document, L.e. Its actlon Is extended with a new
cialf in which it raquests to render our cancession
L termination note o be null and void.
7. Fluid Group Hagen SRL E-5Star Investment Request for liquidation due to the non-payment of
Management SRL confractual fees.

8. ENEF! Nyrt SP — Maros tax authority Compiaint, annuiment of the decree of enforcement
in the amount of 7.602.338 leus.

9. ENEFI Energlahatékonységi Nyrt. | Maros tax authority Complaint against the rejection of the complaint
against the minutes taken by the fax authority to
establish the second tax-law insolvency status
againat the Company's tax-law business elta. Claim
by the tax authority: Tax obligation of 7.602.324 leus.

10. | ENEF!Energiahatékonységi Nyit, | Supreme Court Challenge of the tax resclution, claim by tax
authority; extra amounts fo the tax obligation of
265,977 leus.

11. | ENEFI Energiahatékonysdgl Nyit. | Maros tax authority Complaint against the enforcement decree entitlad
“unifled document permitting enforcement’ (no. RO
1263929/14.01.2015 UIPE_1)

Financlal enforcement Is launched for the claim of
9.867.217 leus
12, | Uzina Electrica (CET) E-Star ZA Distriterm Paymont of contractual fees
SRL _{payment order).
13. | Town of Z#ah with county - E-Star ZA Distriterm Termination of the concesslon contract, declaring the
Jurisdiction SRL trunk line sale and purchase contract o be null and
- ENEFI1 void.
Energlahatékonységi
Nyrt. {former E-Star
Alternativ Nyrt.)
14. | Uzina Electrica (CET) E~Star ZA Distriterm Payment of contractual fees (liquidation procedure).
SRL

15. | - ENEFI Energiahatékonysagi 8zilagy County Tax . Chalienging the public administrative resolution.
Nyrt. Office
- E-Star Management Zri.

- E-Star ZA Digtriterm SRL
16. | Uzina Electiica (CET) E-Star Energy Land purchase, claim for VAT differenice
Generation SA -

17. | - Zilah Tex Office - 180, the liguidator of E- | Compilaint about the liquidator's declsion on rejecting
- Town of Zilah with county Star ZA Distritern SRL the tax office’s request to pay RON 930.000 as
jurlsdiction - gpacial managing current debls.

director
18. | ENEFIEnergiahatékonyséagi Nyrt. | - Zilah Tax Office Comptlaint about enforcement against minutes on the
-Maros Tax Office seizure of real estate asssfs

19. | - 180, the liquidator of E-Star ZA - Zilah Tax Office - Tha liquidator challenged the resuit of the financial
Dietriterm SRL examination whereby the tax office established that
- ENEF! Energiahatékonységi the finally iost claim & current and the court
Nyri. reeclutions stating the contrary are not valid against
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Star ZA Distriterm SRL

- ENEF}
Energlahatékonysdgi
Nyrt.

-E-Star Management Zrt.
- E-Star Energy
Generation SA

~ E-Star Management Zri. the tax office.

- E-Star Energy Generation SA - Tha creditors whose interest is violaled by the tex
office’s manner of procedure submitted a request for
intervention.

20. [ Zilah Tax Office - 180, the liguidator of E- | - The Zilahf tax office challenged the decision of the

crediting committee dated 20.02.2016 to employ an
aftorney.

42. Approval of financial statements

The Annual General Mesting of ENEFI Energy Efficiency Plc. on June 1, 2016, approvad the 2015 consolidsted financlal
statements of the Company prepared In accordance with Intemational Finandial Reporting Standards (FFRS).

43. Statements

We caution you that @ number of important faclors could cause asiual results to differ materially from stalements for the future,

Statemant of responsibility — We daclare that the Consolidated Financlal Statements which have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable accouniing standards and the best knowledge, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilifies, financlal
position and profit or loss of ENEF| Energy Efficiency Plo, and Its underiekings included in the consolidation, davelopment and
performance of the Company and ite underiakings included in the consolidation, together with a description of the principal risks
and uncerfelnties of its business.

The Board of Directors approved the financial statement on June 1, 2016 and recommended it for publicafion.

Budapsest, Jung 1, 2016

Representative of ENEF| ENERGYEFFICIENGY |
ENEFI Energiahatékonysa’gi Nyrt.

1134 Budapest, Klapka u. 11,9, om.
Addszam: 13719069-4-41
Csoportazonostts; 17781846-5-41

Banksz.sz: 12001008-007 23720-00100000







